
Resources Department
Town Hall, Upper Street, London, N1 2UD

AGENDA FOR THE LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE B

Members of Licensing Sub Committee B are summoned to a meeting, which will be held in 
Committee Room 4, Town Hall, Upper Street, N1 2UD on, 5 November 2019 at 6.30 
pm.

Enquiries to : Jackie Tunstall
Tel : 020 7527 3068
E-mail : democracy@islington.gov.uk
Despatched : 28 October 2019

Membership Substitute

Councillor Phil Graham (Chair)
Councillor Vivien Cutler (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Matt Nathan

All other members of the Licensing 
committee

Quorum: is 3 Councillors

Welcome : Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting. 
Procedures to be followed at the meeting are attached.

Public Document Pack



A. Formal matters Page

1. Introductions and procedure

2. Apologies for absence

3. Declarations of substitute members

4. Declarations of interest

If you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest* in an item of business:
 if it is not yet on the council’s register, you must declare both the 

existence and details of it at the start of the meeting or when it 
becomes apparent;

 you may choose to declare a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest that is 
already in the register in the interests of openness and transparency.  

In both the above cases, you must leave the room without participating in 
discussion of the item.

If you have a personal interest in an item of business and you intend to speak 
or vote on the item you must declare both the existence and details of it at the 
start of the meeting or when it becomes apparent but you may participate in 
the discussion and vote on the item.

*(a) Employment, etc - Any employment, office, trade, profession or 
vocation carried on for profit or gain.

(b)Sponsorship - Any payment or other financial benefit in respect of your 
expenses in carrying out duties as a member, or of your election; including 
from a trade union.

(c) Contracts - Any current contract for goods, services or works, between 
you or your partner (or a body in which one of you has a beneficial interest) 
and the council.

(d) Land - Any beneficial interest in land which is within the council’s area.
(e) Licences- Any licence to occupy land in the council’s area for a month or 

longer.
(f) Corporate tenancies - Any tenancy between the council and a body in 

which you or your partner have a beneficial interest.
 (g) Securities - Any beneficial interest in securities of a body which has a 

place of business or land in the council’s area, if the total nominal value of 
the securities exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the total issued share 
capital of that body or of any one class of its issued share capital.  

This applies to all members present at the meeting.

5. Order of Business

6. Minutes of Previous Meeting 1 - 10

B. Items for Decision Page



1. Papa Johns, 790 Holloway Road, N19 3JH - New premises licence 11 - 42

2. Firebrand Pizza, 84-86 Rosebery Avenue, EC1R 4QY - New premises 
licence

43 - 70

C. Urgent non-exempt items

Any non-exempt items which the Chair agrees should be considered 
urgently by reason of special circumstances. The reasons for urgency will 
be agreed by the Chair and recorded in the minutes.

D. Exclusion of public and press

To consider whether, in view of the nature of the remaining items on the 
agenda, any of them are likely to involve the disclosure of exempt or 
confidential information within the terms of the Access to Information 
Procedure Rules in the Constitution and, if so, whether to exclude the 
press and public during discussion thereof.

E. Urgent Exempt Items (if any)

Any exempt items which the Chair agrees should be considered urgently 
by reason of special circumstances.  The reasons for urgency will be 
agreed by the Chair and recorded in the minutes.



ISLINGTON LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEES - 

PROCEDURE FOR HEARING LICENSING APPLICATIONS UNDER THE LICENSING ACT 2003

INTRODUCTION TIME 
GUIDE

1)  The Chair of the Sub-Committee will open the meeting and invite all members of the Sub-Committee, 
Officers, the applicant and anybody making representations, including witnesses (who have been given 
permission to appear) to introduce themselves.

2)  The Chair will introduce the application and draw attention to the procedure to be followed as 
detailed below.

CONSIDERATION OF APPLICATIONS:

N.B. The Sub-Committee have read all the papers.  All parties should use this time to present 
a summary of their key points and not to repeat the detail already provided in the report.

3)  The Licensing Officer will report any further information relating to the application or 
representations.
Where necessary the relevant parties will respond to these points during their submissions.

4)  Responsible Authorities to present the key points of their representations; and clarify any points 
requested by the Authority.  Witnesses, given permission by the Authority, may appear.

10 
mins

5)  The Sub-Committee to question the responsible authorities on matters arising from their submission.

6)  Interested Parties to present the key points of their representations; and clarify any points 
requested by the Authority.  Witnesses, given permission by the Authority, may appear.

10 
mins

7)  The Sub-Committee to question the objectors on matters arising from their submission.

8) The applicant to present the key points of their application, address the representations and clarify 
any points requested by the Authority.  Witnesses given permission by the Authority may appear.

10 
mins

9)  The Sub-Committee to question the applicants on matters arising from their submission.

10)  If required, the Licensing Officer to clarify matters relating to the application and the Licensing 
Policy.

11)  The Chair may give permission for any party to question another party in the order of 
representations     given above.

CASE SUMMARIES

12)  Responsible Authorities 2
13)  Interested parties mins
14)  Applicant each

DELIBERATION AND DECISION

15)  The Sub-Committee may retire to consider its decision.  The Committee Clerk and Legal Officer will 
remain with the Sub-Committee.

16)  If the Sub-Committee retires, all parties should remain available to provide further information or 
clarification.

17)  The chair will announce their decision giving reasons and any conditions to be attached to the 
licence.  All parties will be informed of the decision in writing.



1

London Borough of Islington

Licensing Sub Committee B -  3 September 2019

Minutes of the meeting of the Licensing Sub Committee B held at Committee Room 4, 
Town Hall, Upper Street, N1 2UD on 3 September 2019 at 6.30 pm.

Present: Councillors: Graham (Chair), Cutler (Vice-Chair) and Nathan

Councillor Phil Graham in the Chair

61 INTRODUCTIONS AND PROCEDURE (Item A1)
Councillor Graham welcomed everyone to the meeting and officers and members
introduced themselves. The procedure for the conduct of the meeting was outlined.

62 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (Item A2)
None. 

63 DECLARATIONS OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS (Item A3)
None.

64 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (Item A4)
None.

65 ORDER OF BUSINESS (Item A5)
The order of business would be as the agenda. 

66 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING (Item A6)
The Chair advised of a typographical error at Minute 51 of the minutes of the 
meeting held on 2 July 2019. It was advised that the resolution on page 7 of the 
minutes should read ‘That the premises licence in respect of Afasika Bar and 
Restauant, 152 Seven Sisters Road N7 7PL, be revoked’. It was agreed that the 
minutes should be amended accordingly. 

RESOLVED: 

a) That the minutes of the meeting held on 2 July 2019 be confirmed as an 
accurate record of proceedings and the Chair be authorised to sign them; 
subject to the amendment set out above. 

b) That the minutes of the meeting held on 13 August 2019 be confirmed as an 
accurate record of proceedings and the Chair be authorised to sign them.

Page 1

Agenda Item A6



Licensing Sub Committee B -  3 September 2019

2

67 SUNLIGHT KEBAB, 177 BLACKSTOCK ROAD, N5 2LL - NEW PREMISES 
LICENCE (Item B1)
The licensing officer advised that the planning implications detailed on page 12 of 
the report related to an earlier planning consent. A subsequent consent had been 
granted to permit the premises to open between the hours of 8.00am and midnight 
Monday to Saturday. It was advised that these hours were not compatible with the 
licensing application, which sought a licence for the provision of late night 
refreshment Monday to Sunday from 23:00 to 03:00. 

The licensing officer advised that an out of hours visit had been conducted and the 
premises appeared to be serving customers after 23:00 without a licence. This 
resulted in a warning letter being issued. 

The licensing officer advised that the applicant had submitted a detailed letter 
responding to the representations made in objection to the application. This had 
been circulated to the Sub-Committee and interested parties. This letter stated that 
the applicant wished to amend the application hours to Monday to Thursday from 
23:00 to midnight, Friday and Saturday from 23:00 to 02:00, and Sunday and Bank 
Holidays from 23:00 to midnight. The licensing officer advised that one local 
resident had responded to this letter, advising that they maintained their objection 
to the application. 

The licensing authority confirmed that out of hours visits were conducted on 7 June 
at 23:46 and 23 August at 00:23 and on both occasions the premises appeared to 
be open. The premises did not have a licence to provide late night refreshment and 
therefore should cease trading at 23:00. It was advised that the applicant had 
admitted to trading after 23:00 and this indicated that the premises was not well 
managed. 

The licensing authority noted that the application sought the provision of late night 
refreshment until 03:00 however the premises’ planning permission only permitted 
the premises to be open until midnight. It was advised that the council’s Licensing 
Policy requires that applicants should have the relevant planning permissions before 
submitting a licensing application and this had not happened in this instance. 

The Sub-Committee noted that representations from interested parties referenced 
loud noises from an extractor fan and asked if this had been investigated by 
officers. In response, the licensing officer advised that this would be a matter for 
the Noise Team. 

The interested parties addressed the Sub-Committee and advised that they had a 
good relationship with the applicant. The interested parties commented that there 
were loud noises from an extractor fan in the vicinity of the premises, however the 
interested parties acknowledged that the noise may originate from a neighbouring 
property. The interested parties advised that there were issues related to drug 
taking and drunkenness in the area and residents were concerned that these issues 
could be exacerbated by the provision of late night refreshment. It was also advised 
that the pavement outside of the premises was narrow and was sometimes blocked 

Page 2



Licensing Sub Committee B -  3 September 2019

3

by fast food delivery drivers congregating outside of the premises. The 
congregation of delivery drivers on mopeds was a source of noise nuisance. 

In response to questions from the Sub-Committee, the interested parties advised 
that the noise from the extractor fan had worsened in recent years and they had 
previously engaged with the local authority on this issue.   

The applicant advised that the economic situation presented a very challenging 
environment for his business and he wished to trade later into the evening to 
generate additional revenue. 

In response to a question, the applicant advised that his extractor fan was regularly 
cleaned and serviced by a specialist engineer. The applicant advised that another 
resident had complained about extractor fan noise directly to the premises and on 
that occasion it was concluded that the noise originated from a nearby property. 

In response to a question, the applicant stated that he was unaware of the need to 
apply for planning consent separately to applying for a licence. It was also advised 
that the premises may have been open beyond midnight on occasion, however this 
would have been to clean the premises and to allow customers to finish their meals 
before leaving the premises. 

In summary, the licensing authority expressed concern that the applicant did not 
appear to understand the difference between the planning and licensing regulatory 
regimes. The interested parties reiterated concerns about noise nuisance. 

RESOLVED:

a) That the application for a new premises licence in respect of Sunlight Kebab, 
177 Blackstock Road, N5 2LL be granted to allow the provision of late night 
refreshment Monday to Saturday 23:00 to midnight, except bank holidays;

b) The conditions detailed in Appendix 3 on pages 48 and 49 of the agenda pack 
shall be applied to the licence, with the deletion of Police Condition 2(g), which 
relates to the sale of alcohol and is not relevant in this instance.

REASONS FOR DECISION:

The Sub-Committee listened to all the evidence and submissions and read all the 
material. The Sub-Committee reached the decision having given consideration to 
the Licensing Act 2003, as amended, and its regulations, the national guidance and 
the Council’s Licensing Policy. 

The Licensing Sub-Committee noted that the premises were not in a Cumulative 
Impact Area. The Licensing Sub-Committee also noted the planning permission 
conditions attached to the premises. 

Page 3



Licensing Sub Committee B -  3 September 2019

4

The Licensing Sub-Committee noted the representations from local residents and 
that the conditions proposed by the Police and the Noise Service were agreed by 
the applicant. 

The applicant advised that he was making the application because of increased 
competition and business was down. The applicant advised that he regularly 
arranged for the extractor fan to be cleaned and the Sub-Committee noted that the 
applicant had put in a written response to the representations from interested 
parties and had a good relationship with local residents. 

The Sub-Committee had some concern about the management of the premises in 
light of the out of hours operation that had been observed by licensing officers. 
However, as the applicant had accepted the conditions proposed by the Responsible 
Authorities, the Licensing Sub-Committee decided it was reasonable and 
proportionate to grant the application. In considering the terminal hour for Monday 
to Saturday, the Licensing Sub-Committee referred to Licensing Policies 1 and 6. In 
accordance with Licensing Policy 1, the terminal hour of midnight was in line with 
planning permission currently in place and no grant was made for Sunday or Bank 
Holidays as the applicant did not have planning permission in place. The hours 
agreed by the Licensing Sub-Committee were within the framework hours set out in 
Licensing Policy 6. 

The Licensing Sub-Committee was satisfied that the agreed conditions were 
reasonable and proportionate and the licensing objectives would be promoted. The 
Sub-Committee noted in particular that the conditions would promote the licensing 
objective to prevent public nuisance, and in line with Licensing Policy 21, would 
address the concerns raised by the Noise Service and local residents. 

68 SA PFC, 181 BLACKSTOCK ROAD, N5 2LL - NEW PREMISES LICENCE (Item 
B2)
The licensing officer noted that the applicant was not present at the meeting. It was 
stated that a letter inviting the applicant to the meeting had been hand delivered to 
the applicant on Friday 30 August. It was advised that officers had previously 
observed the premises trading without a licence for late night refreshment and 
representations from local residents had been received in relation to the application. 

The licensing authority advised that the applicant had not engaged with the 
application process. It was noted that the premises only had planning permission to 
trade until 23.15, yet was seeking a premises licence for late night refreshment until 
2:00. 

An interested party commented that the premises had a strong smell of cooking oil 
and noisy extractor fans which impacted on the amenity of local residents. In 
response to a question, it was confirmed that these matters had not been raised 
with local authority environmental health officers or the premises owner. The 
interested party explained that they had been unable to raise these matters with 
the owner as they were not on site and the shop was staffed by employees.  

Page 4



Licensing Sub Committee B -  3 September 2019

5

RESOLVED:

a) That the application for a new premises licence in respect of SA PFC, 181 
Blackstock Road, N5 2LL be granted to allow the provision of late night 
refreshment Monday to Sunday from 23:00 to 23:15;

b) The conditions detailed in Appendix 3 on pages 77 and 78 of the agenda pack 
shall be applied to the licence, with the deletion of Police Condition 2(g), which 
relates to the sale of alcohol and is not relevant in this instance.

REASONS FOR DECISION:

The Sub-Committee listened to all the evidence and submissions and read all the 
material. The Sub-Committee reached the decision having given consideration to 
the Licensing Act 2003, as amended, and its regulations, the national guidance and 
the Council’s Licensing Policy. 

The applicant did not attend the hearing and the Licensing Sub-Committee decided 
to proceed in their absence. It was noted that the applicant had not responded in 
writing to the representations made by local residents. The Sub-Committee noted 
the submission from the Licensing Authority that the applicant had not engaged 
with them. 

The Licensing Sub-Committee noted that the premises were not in a Cumulative 
Impact Area. The Licensing Sub-Committee also noted the planning permission 
conditions attached to the premises. 

The Licensing Sub-Committee noted the representations from local residents and 
that the conditions proposed by the Police and the Noise Service were agreed by 
the applicant. 

The Sub-Committee had some concern about the management of the premises in 
light of the out of hours operation that had been observed by licensing officers. 
However, as the applicant had accepted the conditions proposed by the Responsible 
Authorities, the Licensing Sub-Committee decided it was reasonable and 
proportionate to grant the application. In considering the terminal hour, the 
Licensing Sub-Committee referred to Licensing Policies 1 and 6. In accordance with 
Licensing Policy 1, the terminal hour 23:15 was in line with planning permission 
currently in place. The hours agreed by the Licensing Sub-Committee were within 
the framework hours set out in Licensing Policy 6. 

The Licensing Sub-Committee were satisfied that the agreed conditions were 
reasonable and proportionate and the licensing objectives would be promoted. The 
Sub-Committee noted in particular that the conditions would promote the licensing 
objective to prevent public nuisance, and in line with Licensing Policy 21, would 
address the concerns raised by the Noise Service and local residents. 

Page 5



Licensing Sub Committee B -  3 September 2019

6

69 ALDI, 681- 689 HOLLOWAY ROAD, N19 5SE - PREMISES LICENCE 
VARIATION (Item B3)
The licensing officer advised that the Community Safety representative was not able 
to attend the meeting however had stated that they maintained the objections 
detailed in their representation. 

The licensing authority advised of a typographical error in their representation on 
page 104 of the agenda pack, and clarified that the premises is currently authorised 
for the sale by retail of alcohol, off supplies only, on Mondays to Sunday from 11:00 
until 22:00.  

Public Health highlighted that there was a high level of alcohol related harm in the 
Junction ward and there was a significantly high level alcohol-related hospital 
admissions in the Junction ward. It was advised that the premises was close to the 
Whittington Hospital and, if the application was granted, it would increase the 
access to alcohol of vulnerable people leaving the hospital.  

A member queried how many licensed premises there were in the local area. In 
response, the licensing authority advised that there was a high concentration of 
licensed premises and the premises was located in the Archway cumulative impact 
area. It was also highlighted that there was a high level of problematic street 
drinking in the area. 

Following a question, the licensing authority advised that they considered that the 
application did not sufficiently address cumulative impact issues.  

The applicant advised that a premises licence was granted in 2018 and therefore 
the applicant was well aware of cumulative impact issues in the local area. The 
applicant advised that they had engaged with the Police and additional conditions 
had been agreed to mitigate the impact on the cumulative impact area. The 
applicant advised that the purpose of the application was to provide morning 
customers with the choice and convenience of purchasing alcohol with their 
groceries. The application was part of an exercise to synchronise the licensable 
hours of all of their city centre stores and the premises was the only Aldi store in 
the country which was not allowed to sell alcohol until 11:00. The applicant 
contested that other competitor national supermarket chains operating in the local 
area were licensed to sell alcohol before 11:00. The applicant emphasised that the 
Police had not objected to the application and there were no crime or disorder 
issues associated with the premises. 

The applicant had applied for Temporary Event Notices to test the proposed 
licensable hours; these were in place from 19 to 24 August and 26 to 30 August. 
During this period there were only three days when alcohol sales exceeded £100 
before 11am, and these were around the Bank Holiday weekend. The average 
alcohol spend before 11am on all other days was between £28 and £66, which 
represented around 2.5% of sales. The applicant advised that they understood 
public health concerns, however they were a well-run national supermarket chain 
that sought to promote responsible alcohol consumption. It was advised that Aldi 

Page 6



Licensing Sub Committee B -  3 September 2019

7

had an umblemished enforcement record and took their responsibilities around the 
sale of alcohol very seriously. It was commented that the existing licence was 
already heavily conditioned and the new conditions agreed with the Police would 
mitigate the impact of the increase in licensable hours. The applicant advised that 
they were willing to work closely with the Responsible Authorities. 

The Sub-Committee noted that the Temporary Event Notices were in place over the 
summer holiday period and considered if footfall would be higher or lower than 
during other periods of the year. 

The Sub-Committee queried why the applicant was applying for the sale of alcohol 
until 23:00 on Sundays. In response, the applicant advised the premises was bound 
by the Sunday Trading Act and was only open between 11:00 and 17:00 on 
Sundays. The applicant indicated that they would agree to terminating licensable 
activity at 17:00 on Sundays. 

The Sub-Committee queried if they applicant fully understood concerns related to 
vulnerable people, such as hospital patients, having easier access to low cost 
alcohol in the mornings. In response, the applicant advised that they were a 
responsible operator and did not sell alcohol cheaper than independent retailers 
operating in the local area. It was advised that the relatively low volume of alcohol 
sales during the periods covered by the Temporary Event Notices indicated that 
there was a minimal impact associated with extending the licensable hours. 

In summary, the licensing authority commented that their concerns had been 
somewhat allayed by the information provided verbally by the applicant and it was 
regrettable that this information was not provided in the original application. 

The applicant said that the modest increase in licensable hours would provide 
customers with increased convenience and that they understood and respected 
concerns about protecting vulnerable people from alcohol related harm.  

RESOLVED: 

a) To grant the application for a premises licence variation in respect of Aldi, 681- 
689 Holloway Road, N19 5SE to allow the sale by retail of alcohol, off supplies 
only, Monday to Saturday from 08:00 to 23:00; and Sunday and Bank Holidays 
11:00 to 17:00. 

b) The conditions detailed at Appendix 4, page 111 of the agenda pack, agreed 
with the Metropolitan Police and consistent with operating schedule, shall be 
applied to the licence.  

REASONS FOR DECISION: 

The Sub-Committee listened to all the evidence and submissions and read all the 
material. The Sub-Committee reached the decision having given consideration to 

Page 7



Licensing Sub Committee B -  3 September 2019

8

the Licensing Act 2003, as amended, and its regulations, the national guidance and 
the Council’s Licensing Policy. 

The Sub-Committee took into consideration Licensing Policies 2 & 3.  The premises 
fall within the Archway cumulative impact area.  Licensing policy 3 creates a 
rebuttable presumption that applications for the grant or variation of premises 
licences which are likely to add to the existing cumulative impact will normally be 
refused following the receipt of representations, unless the applicant can 
demonstrate in the operation schedule that there will be no negative cumulative 
impact on one or more of the licensing objectives.

The Sub-Committee took into consideration Licensing Policy 4.  The Council has 
adopted a special policy relating to cumulative impact in relation to shops and other 
premises selling alcohol for consumption off the premises.  Licensing policy 4 
creates a rebuttable presumption that applications for the grant or variation of 
premises licences which are likely to add to the existing cumulative impact will 
normally be refused or subject to certain limitations, following the receipt of 
representations, unless the applicant can demonstrate in the operation schedule 
that there will be no negative cumulative impact on one or more of the licensing 
objectives.

The Sub-Committee noted the representation from the interested party. The Sub-
Committee also noted the representations from the Responsible Authorities. The 
applicant had agreed to the Police conditions and the applicant had demonstrated 
full engagement with the Police.  

The Sub-Committee noted that the application had not assessed the impact of the 
proposed variation on the Archway cumulative impact area, however the applicant 
did address these issues during the hearing and in summing up the Licensing 
Authority submitted that these issues had been satisfactorily addressed.

The Sub-Committee noted that the applicant had applied for Temporary Event 
Notices leading up to the hearing to provide the Sub-Committee with evidence 
regarding alcohol sales during morning hours. The applicant demonstrated high 
standards of management in accordance with Licensing Policy 8.

The applicant offered to amend the application in relation to Sundays and Bank 
Holidays so that licensed hours would be from 11:00 to 17:00.

The Sub-Committee referred to the Home Office Revised Guidance and noted that 
cumulative impact policies should be considered for each application and that 
applications that are unlikely to add to the cumulative impact should be granted. In 
line with this guidance, and the council’s Licensing Policy, the Sub-Committee was 
satisfied that the grant of the variation would not have a negative cumulative 
impact on the licensing objectives. The conditions were agreed with the Police and 
the Licensing Sub-Committee were satisfied that they were reasonable and 
proportionate to promote the licensing objectives. 

Page 8



Licensing Sub Committee B -  3 September 2019

9

The meeting ended at 8.25 pm

CHAIR

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Environment & Regeneration
Municipal Office, 222 Upper Street, N1 1XR 

Report of: Service Director, Public Protection 

Meeting of: Date: Ward(s): 

Licensing Sub-Committee - B 05/11/2019 Junction 

Exempt Non-exempt 

SUBJECT: PREMISES LICENCE NEW APPLICATION 
RE: PAPA JOHNS, 790 HOLLOWAY ROAD, LONDON 

N19 3JH 

1. Synopsis

1.1 This is an application for a new premise licence under the Licensing Act 2003. 

1.2 The new application is to allow: 

 The provision of late night refreshment, Sunday to Thursday, from 23:00 to 00:00
and Friday and Saturday, from 23:00 to 01:00, and; on New Year’s Eve and New
Year’s Day from 23:00 to 03:00.

 The premises to be open to the public, Sunday to Thursday, from 11:00 to 00:00
and Friday and Saturday, from, 11:00 to 01:00.

2. Relevant Representations

Licensing Authority No 

Metropolitan Police No 

Noise No 

Health and Safety No 

Trading Standards No 

t 1S LINGTON 

Page 11

Agenda Item B1



Public Health No 

Safeguarding Children No 

London Fire Brigade No 

Local residents No: 

Other bodies Yes: 2 local councillors 

3. Background

3.1 This property currently holds a premises licence which allows for the provision of late 
night refreshment on Sundays to Thursdays, from 23:00 to 02:00 and on Fridays and 
Saturdays, from 23:00 to 03:00. 

3.2 The premises is open to the public on Sundays to Thursdays 10:00 to 02:00 and on 
Fridays and Saturdays, from 10:00 to 03:00. 

4. Planning Implications

4.1 The Planning and Development section have the following comments to make in 
relation to the above licence application. 

4.2 Planning application dated 08/02/2003. Change of use of ground floor and part of first 
floor from retail (A1) to hot food take-away (A3) including ventilation/extract 
equipment at rear. No restrictive conditions relating hours of opening. 

4.3 There are no enforcement cases open in relation to this property 

5. Recommendations

5.1 To determine the application for a new premises licence under Section 17 of the 
Licensing Act 2003. 

5.2 If the Committee grants the application it should be subject to: 

i. conditions prepared by the Licensing Officer which are consistent with the
Operating Schedule (see appendix 3); and

ii. any conditions deemed appropriate by the Committee to promote the four
licensing objectives.(see appendix 3)

6. Reasons for recommendations

6.1 The Council is required to consider this application in the light of all relevant 
information, and if approval is given, it may attach such conditions as appropriate to 
promote the licensing objectives. 

Page 12



Appendices: 

Appendix 1: 

Appendix 2: 

Appendix 3: 

application form and current premises licence; 

representations; 

suggested conditions and map of premises location. 

Background papers: 

None. 

Final report clearance: 

Signed by: 

Service Director – Public Protection Date 

Report author: Licensing Service 

Tel: 020 75027 3031 

E-mail: licensing@islington.gov.uk

23/10/19

Page 13

mailto:licensing@islington.gov.uk


© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Islington
Application for a premises licence
Licensing Act 2003

For help contact

licensing@islington.gov.uk

Telephone: 020 7527 3031 

* required information

Section 1 of 21

You can save the form at any time and resume it later. You do not need to be logged in when you resume.

System reference Not Currently In Use This is the unique reference for this 
application generated by the system.

Your reference PJARCHWAY You can put what you want here to help you 
track applications if you make lots of them. It 
is passed to the authority.

Are you an agent acting on behalf of the applicant?

Yes No

Put "no" if you are applying on your own 
behalf or on behalf of a business you own or 
work for.

Applicant Details

* First name RAHEEL

* Family name CHOUDHARY

* E-mail HARRIS.SARWAR@PAPAJOHNS-GROUP.CO.
UK

Main telephone number Include country code.

Other telephone number

Indicate here if you would prefer not to be contacted by telephone

Are you:

Applying as a business or organisation, including as a sole trader

Applying as an individual

A sole trader is a business owned by one 
person without any special legal structure.  
Applying as an individual means you are 
applying so you can be employed, or for 
some other personal reason, such as 
following a hobby.

Applicant Business
Is your business registered in 
the UK with Companies 
House?

Yes No Note: completing the Applicant Business 
section is optional in this form.

Registration number

Business name HRC ESTATE LTD
If your business is registered, use its 
registered name.

VAT number - Put "none" if you are not registered for VAT.

Legal status Private Limited Company

Appendix 1

1i 11SUN GTON 

r (e 

--
□ 

(e 

r 

r. r 

... 

Page 14



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...

Your position in the business DIRECTOR

Home country United Kingdom
The country where the headquarters of your 
business is located.

Registered Address

Building number or name ACCOUNTS &TAX CONSULTANTS 

Street 54 NEW ROAD

District

City or town ILFORD

County or administrative area ESSEX

Postcode IG3 8AT

Country United Kingdom

Address registered with Companies House.

Section 2 of 21

PREMISES DETAILS

I/we, as named in section 1, apply for a premises licence under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the premises 
described in section 2 below (the premises) and I/we are making this application to you as the relevant licensing authority 
in accordance with section 12 of the Licensing Act 2003.

Premises Address

Are you able to provide a postal address, OS map reference or description of the premises?

Address OS map reference Description

Postal Address Of Premises

Building number or name 790

Street HOLLOWAY ROAD

District ARCHWAY

City or town LONDON

County or administrative area

Postcode N19 3JH

Country United Kingdom

Further Details

Telephone number

Non-domestic rateable 
value of premises (£) 22,500

r- r 

Page 15



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Section 3 of 21

APPLICATION DETAILS

In what capacity are you applying for the premises licence?

An individual or individuals

A limited company / limited liability partnership

A partnership (other than limited liability)

An unincorporated association

Other (for example a statutory corporation)

A recognised club

A charity

The proprietor of an educational establishment

A health service body

A person who is registered under part 2 of the Care Standards Act 

2000 (c14) in respect of an independent hospital in Wales

A person who is registered under Chapter 2 of Part 1 of the Health and 
Social Care Act 2008 in respect of the carrying on of a regulated 
activity (within the meaning of that Part) in an independent hospital in 
England

The chief officer of police of a police force in England and Wales

Confirm The Following

I am carrying on or proposing to carry on a business which involves 
the use of the premises for licensable activities

I am making the application pursuant to a statutory function

I am making the application pursuant to a function discharged by 
virtue of Her Majesty's prerogative

Section 4 of 21

NON INDIVIDUAL APPLICANTS

Provide name and registered address of applicant in full. Where appropriate give any registered number. In the case of a 
partnership or other joint venture (other than a body corporate), give the name and address of each party concerned.

Non Individual Applicant's Name

Name HRC ESTATE LTD 

Details

Registered number (where 
applicable)

Description of applicant (for example partnership, company, unincorporated association etc)

□ 
[g] 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

[g] 

□ 

□ 

I I 

- I 

Page 16



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...

UNINCORPORATED

Address

Building number or name ACOUNTS & TAX CONSULTANTS

Street 54 NEW ROAD

District

City or town ILFORD

County or administrative area ESSEX

Postcode IG3 8AT

Country United Kingdom

Contact Details

E-mail HARRIS.SARWAR@PAPAJOHNS-GROUP.CO.
UK

Telephone number

Other telephone number

* Date of birth / /
 dd               mm             yyyy

* Nationality
Documents that demonstrate entitlement to 
work in the UK

Add another applicant

Section 5 of 21

OPERATING SCHEDULE

When do you want the 
premises licence to start? 11 / 10 / 2019

 dd               mm             yyyy

If you wish the licence to be 
valid only for a limited period, 
when do you want it to end

/ /
 dd               mm             yyyy

Provide a general description of the premises

For example the type of premises, its general situation and layout and any other information which could be relevant to the 
licensing objectives. Where your application includes off-supplies of alcohol and you intend to provide a place for 
consumption of these off- supplies you must include a description of where the place will be and its proximity to the 
premises.

PIZZA TAKEWAY AND DELIVERY

I 

- I 

[iJ [iJ 1•1 

- I 

I 

D □ I I 

D □ I I 

Page 17



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...

If 5,000 or more people are 
expected to attend the 
premises at any one time, 
state the number expected to 
attend

Section 6 of 21

PROVISION OF PLAYS

See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will you be providing plays?

Yes No

Section 7 of 21

PROVISION OF FILMS

See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will you be providing films?

Yes No

Section 8 of 21

PROVISION OF INDOOR SPORTING EVENTS

See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will you be providing indoor sporting events?

Yes No

Section 9 of 21

PROVISION OF BOXING OR WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENTS

See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will you be providing boxing or wrestling entertainments?

Yes No

Section 10 of 21

PROVISION OF LIVE MUSIC

See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will you be providing live music?

Yes No

Section 11 of 21

PROVISION OF RECORDED MUSIC

See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will you be providing recorded music?

Yes No

Section 12 of 21

PROVISION OF PERFORMANCES OF DANCE

See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will you be providing performances of dance?

I I 

r (e 

r (e 

r (e 

r (e 

r (e 

r (e 

Page 18



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page... Yes No

Section 13 of 21

PROVISION OF ANYTHING OF A SIMILAR DESCRIPTION TO LIVE MUSIC, RECORDED MUSIC OR PERFORMANCES OF 
DANCE

See guidance on regulated entertainment
Will you be providing anything similar to live music, recorded music or 
performances of dance?

Yes No

Section 14 of 21

LATE NIGHT REFRESHMENT

Will you be providing late night refreshment?

Yes No

Standard Days And Timings

MONDAY

Start 23:00 End 00:00

Start End

Give timings in 24 hour clock. 
(e.g., 16:00) and only give details for the days 
of the week when you intend the premises 
to be used for the activity.

TUESDAY

Start 23:00 End 00:00

Start End

WEDNESDAY

Start 23:00 End 00:00

Start End

THURSDAY

Start 23:00 End 00:00

Start End

FRIDAY

Start 23:00 End 01:00

Start End

SATURDAY

Start 23:00 End 01:00

Start End

SUNDAY

Start 23:00 End 00:00

Start End

r r-

r- r 

I I I I 

I I I I 

I I I I 

I I I I 

I I I I 

I I I I 

I I I I 

I I I I 

I I I I 

I I I I 

I I I I 

I I I I 

I I I I 

I I I I 

Page 19



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...

Will the provision of late night refreshment take place indoors or outdoors or 
both?

Indoors Outdoors Both Where taking place in a building or other 
structure tick as appropriate. Indoors may 
include a tent.

State type of activity to be authorised, if not already stated, and give relevant further details, for example (but not 
exclusively) whether or not music will be amplified or unamplified.

N/A

State any seasonal variations

For example (but not exclusively) where the activity will occur on additional days during the summer months.

N/A

Non-standard timings. Where the premises will be used for the supply of late night refreshments at different times from 
those listed in the column on the left, list below

For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day e.g. Christmas Eve.

NEW YEARS DAY AND NEW YEARS EVE 23:00 TO 03:00

Section 15 of 21

SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL

Will you be selling or supplying alcohol?

Yes No

PROPOSED DESIGNATED PREMISES SUPERVISOR CONSENT

How will the consent form of the proposed designated premises  supervisor 
be supplied to the authority? 

Electronically, by the proposed designated premises supervisor

As an attachment to this application

Reference number for consent 
form (if known)

If the consent form is already submitted, ask 
the proposed designated premises 
supervisor for its 'system reference' or 'your 
reference'.

Section 16 of 21

ADULT ENTERTAINMENT

r r r-

r r-

r 
r 

I I 

Page 20



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...

Highlight any adult entertainment or services, activities, or other entertainment or matters ancillary to the use of the 
premises that may give rise to concern in respect of children

Give information about anything intended to occur at the premises or ancillary to the use of the premises which may give 
rise to concern in respect of children, regardless of whether you intend children to have access to the premises, for example 
(but not exclusively) nudity or semi-nudity, films for restricted age groups etc gambling machines etc.

N/A

Section 17 of 21

HOURS PREMISES ARE OPEN TO THE PUBLIC

Standard Days And Timings

MONDAY

Start 11:00 End 00:00

Start End

Give timings in 24 hour clock. 
(e.g., 16:00) and only give details for the days 
of the week when you intend the premises 
to be used for the activity.

TUESDAY

Start 11:00 End 00:00

Start End

WEDNESDAY

Start 11:00 End 00:00

Start End

THURSDAY

Start 11:00 End 00:00

Start End

FRIDAY

Start 11:00 End 01:00

Start End

SATURDAY

Start 11:00 End 01:00

Start End

SUNDAY

Start 11:00 End 00:00

Start End

State any seasonal variations

For example (but not exclusively) where the activity will occur on additional days during the summer months.

I I I I 

I I I I 

I I I I 

I I I I 

I I I I 

I I I I 

I I I I 

I I I I 

I I I I 

I I I I 

I I I I 

I I I I 

I I I I 

I I I I 

Page 21



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...

N/A

Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises to be open to the members and guests at different times from 
those listed in the column on the left, list below

For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day e.g. Christmas Eve.

NEW YEARS DAY AND NEW YEARS EVE 23:00 TO 03:00

Section 18 of 21

LICENSING OBJECTIVES

Describe the steps you intend to take to promote the four licensing objectives:

a) General – all four licensing objectives (b,c,d,e)

List here steps you will take to promote all four licensing objectives together.

WE HAVE HIGHLY TRAINED STAFF TO UNDERSTAND THE 4 LICENSING OBJECTIVES. WE WILL PUT UP NOTICES FOR 
CUSTOMERS TO LEAVE OUR PREMISES QUITELY. WE WILL SET UP REGULAR LITTER PATROLS AROUND THE STORE. WE WILL 
MONITOR CCTV TO ENSURE PUBLIC SAFETY, PLUS A DEDICATED STAFF HANDLER FOR CHILDREN.

b) The prevention of crime and disorder

WE HAVE INSTALLED A STATE OF THE ART CCTV SYSTEM TO RECORD AND MONITOR ACTIVITY, THE POLICE AND OTHER 
LAW ENFORCEMENT AGENCIES WILL HAVE FULL ACCESS. STAFF HAVE BEEN TRAINED TO TACKLE DISORDERLY CUSTOMERS.

c) Public safety

WE HAVE INSTALLED CCTV SYSTEMS THAT THE POLICE CAN USE. WE WILL ENSURE DISABLED CUSTOMERS ARE GIVEN HELP 
WHEN NEEDED OR REQUESTED. WE WILL NOT ENGAGE IN ANY ACTIVITY THAT WILL PUT PUBLIC SAFETY AT RISK.

d) The prevention of public nuisance

WE RESPECT OUR NEIGHBOURS AND THE GENERAL PUBLIC AND WILL KEEP THE LOCAL STREET CLEAN OF LITTER AND 
NOISE TO AN MINIMUM AND ALSO REQUEST CUSTOMERS TO DO THE SAME.

e) The protection of children from harm

THE MANAGER ON DUTY WILL BE FULLY TRAINED ON DEALING WITH ISSUES RELATED TO CHILDREN.

Page 22



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...

Section 19 of 21

NOTES ON DEMONSTRATING ENTITLEMENT TO WORK IN THE UK

Entitlement to work/immigration status for individual applicants and applications from partnerships which are not 
limited liability partnerships:  
A licence may not be held by an individual or an individual in a partnership who is resident in the UK who:  

 • does not have the right to live and work in the UK; or  
 • is subject to a condition preventing him or her from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable 
 activity.  

Any premises licence issued in respect of an application made on or after 6 April 2017 will become invalid if the holder 
ceases to be entitled to work in the UK.  
Applicants must demonstrate that they have an entitlement to work in the UK and are not subject to a condition preventing 
them from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity. They do this in one of two ways: 1) by providing 
with this application copies or scanned copies of the documents listed below (which do not need to be certified), or 2) by 
providing their 'share code' to enable the licensing authority to carry out a check using the Home Office online right to work 
checking service (see below). 
Documents which demonstrate entitlement to work in the UK 

 • An expired or current passport showing the holder, or a person named in the passport as the child of the 
 holder, is A British citizen or a citizen of the UK and Colonies having the right of abode in the UK [please see 
 note below about which sections of the passport to copy].  

 • An expired or current passport or national identity card showing the holder, or a person named in the passport 
 as the child of the holder, is a national of a European Economic Area country or Switzerland.  

 • A Registration Certificate or document certifying permanent residence issued by the Home Office to a national 
 of a European Economic Area country or Switzerland.  
 • A Permanent Residence Card issued by the Home Office to the family member of a national of a European  
 Economic Area country or Switzerland.  

 • A current Biometric Immigration Document (Biometric Residence Permit) issued by the Home Office to the 
 holder indicating that the person named is allowed to stay indefinitely in the UK, or has no time limit on their  
 stay in the UK. 

 • A current passport endorsed to show that the holder is exempt from immigration control, is allowed to stay 
 indefinitely in the UK, has the right of abode in the UK, or has no time limit on their stay in the UK. 

• A current Immigration Status Document issued by the Home Office to the holder with an endorsement 
 indicating that the named person is allowed to stay indefinitely in the UK or has no time limit on their stay in 
 the UK, when produced in combination with an official document giving the person’s permanent National  
 Insurance number and their name issued by a Government agency or a previous employer.  

• A birth or adoption certificate issued in the UK, when produced in combination with an official document 
 giving the person’s permanent National Insurance number and their name issued by a Government agency 
 or a previous employer. 

• A birth or adoption certificate issued in the Channel Islands, the Isle of Man or Ireland when produced in  
 combination with an official document giving the person’s permanent National Insurance number and their  
 name issued by a Government agency or a previous employer. 

• A certificate of registration or naturalisation as a British citizen, when produced in combination with an 
 official document giving the person’s permanent National Insurance number and their name issued by a  
 Government agency or a previous employer. 

Page 23



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...

• A current passport endorsed to show that the holder is allowed to stay in the UK and is currently allowed to 
 work and is not subject to a condition preventing the holder from doing work relating to the carrying on of a  
 licensable activity.   
• A current Biometric Immigration Document (Biometric Residence Permit) issued by the Home Office to the 
 holder which indicates that the named person can currently stay in the UK and is allowed to work relation to  
 the carrying on of a licensable activity. 

• A current Residence Card issued by the Home Office to a person who is not a national of a European Economic  
 Area state or Switzerland but who is a family member of such a national or who has derivative rights or 
 residence. 

• A current Immigration Status Document containing a photograph issued by the Home Office to the holder  
 with an endorsement indicating that the named person may stay in the UK, and is allowed to work and is not  
 subject  to a condition preventing the holder from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity  
 when produced in combination with an official document giving the person’s permanent National Insurance  
 number and their name issued by a Government agency or a previous employer. 

• A Certificate of Application, less than 6 months old, issued by the Home Office under regulation 18(3) or 20(2)  
 of the Immigration (European Economic Area) Regulations 2016, to a  person who is not a national of a  
 European Economic Area  state or Switzerland but who is a family member of such a national or who has  
 derivative rights of residence.  

• Reasonable evidence that the person has an outstanding application to vary their permission to be in the UK  
 with the Home Office such as the Home Office acknowledgement letter or proof of postage evidence, or  
 reasonable evidence that the person has an appeal or administrative review pending on an immigration  
 decision, such as an appeal or administrative review reference number. 

• Reasonable evidence that a person who is not a national of a European Economic Area state or Switzerland but  
 who is a family member of such a national or who has derivative rights of residence in exercising treaty rights in 
 the UK including:-  

• evidence of the applicant’s own identity – such as a passport,  
• evidence of their relationship with the European Economic Area family member – e.g. a marriage  
 certificate, civil partnership certificate or birth certificate, and 
• evidence that the European Economic Area national has a right of permanent residence in the UK or is one  
 of the following if they have been in the UK for more than 3 months: 

(i) working e.g. employment contract, wage slips, letter from the employer, 
(ii) self-employed e.g. contracts, invoices, or audited accounts with a bank, 
(iii) studying e.g. letter from the school, college or university and evidence of sufficient funds; or 
(iv) self-sufficient e.g. bank statements. 

Family members of European Economic Area nationals who are studying or financially independent must also provide 
evidence that the European Economic Area national and any family members hold comprehensive sickness insurance in the 
UK. This can include a private medical insurance policy, an EHIC card or an S1, S2 or S3 form. 
Original documents must not be sent to licensing authorities. If the document copied is a passport, a copy of the 
following pages should be provided:- 
(i) any page containing the holder’s personal details including nationality; 
(ii) any page containing the holder’s photograph; 
(iii) any page containing the holder’s signature; 
(iv) any page containing the date of expiry; and 
(v) any page containing information indicating the holder has permission to enter or remain in the UK and is permitted to 
work.  
 

Page 24



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...

If the document is not a passport, a copy of the whole document should be provided. 
Your right to work will be checked as part of your licensing application and this could involve us checking your immigration 
status with the Home Office. We may otherwise share information with the Home Office. Your licence application will not be 
determined until you have complied with this guidance.  
  
 Home Office online right to work checking service 
  
As an alternative to providing a copy of the documents listed above, applicants may demonstrate their right to work by 
allowing the licensing authority to carry out a check with the Home Office online right to work checking service.  
  
To demonstrate their right to work via the Home Office online right to work checking service, applicants should include in 
this application their 9-digit share code (provided to them upon accessing the service at https://www.gov.uk/prove-right-
to-work) which, along with the applicant's date of birth (provided within this application), will allow the licensing authority 
to carry out the check.  
  
In order to establish the applicant's right to work, the check will need to indicate that the applicant is allowed to work in the 
United Kingdom and is not subject to a condition preventing them from doing work relating to the carrying on of a 
licensable activity. 
  
An online check will not be possible in all circumstances because not all applicants will have an immigration status that can 
be checked online. The Home Office online right to work checking service sets out what information and/or documentation 
applicants will need in order to access the service. Applicants who are unable to obtain a share code from the service 
should submit copy documents as set out above.  
 

Section 20 of 21

NOTES ON REGULATED ENTERTAINMENT

Page 25

https://www.gov.uk/prove-right-to-work
https://www.gov.uk/prove-right-to-work


© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...

In terms of specific regulated entertainments please note that:  

• Plays: no licence is required for performances between 08:00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the audience  
 does not exceed 500. 

• Films: no licence is required for ‘not-for-profit’ film exhibition held in community premises  between 08.00 and  
 23.00 on any day provided that the audience does not exceed 500 and the organiser (a) gets consent to the  
 screening from a person who is responsible for the premises; and (b) ensures that each such screening abides  
 by age classification ratings. 

• Indoor sporting events: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided  
 that the audience does not exceed 1000.     

• Boxing or Wrestling Entertainment:  no licence is required for a contest, exhibition or display of Greco-Roman  
 wrestling, or freestyle wrestling between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the audience does not  
 exceed 1000. Combined fighting sports – defined as a contest, exhibition or display which combines boxing or  
 wrestling with one or more martial arts – are licensable as a boxing or wrestling entertainment rather than an  
 indoor sporting event. 

• Live music: no licence permission is required for: 
o a performance of unamplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, on any premises. 
o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on premises authorised to sell  
 alcohol for consumption on those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500. 
o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a workplace that is not  
 licensed to sell alcohol on those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.  
o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a church hall, village hall,  
 community hall, or other similar community premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell  
 alcohol, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser gets consent for the  
 performance from a person who is responsible for the premises. 
o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, at the non-residential premises 
 of (i) a local authority, or (ii) a school, or (iii) a hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500,  
 and (b) the organiser gets consent for the performance on the relevant premises from: (i) the local  
 authority concerned, or (ii) the school or (iii) the health care provider for the hospital. 

• Recorded Music: no licence permission is required for: 
o any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on premises authorised to sell alcohol  
 for consumption on those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500. 
o any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a church hall, village hall,  
 community hall, or other similar community premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell  
 alcohol, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser gets consent for the  
 performance from a person who is responsible for the premises. 
o any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, at the non-residential premises of (i) a  
 local authority, or (ii) a school, or (iii) a hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) 
 the organiser gets consent for the performance on the relevant premises from: (i) the local authority  
 concerned, or (ii) the school proprietor or (iii) the health care provider for the hospital. 

Page 26



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...

• Dance: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the  
 audience does not exceed 500. However, a performance which amounts to adult entertainment remains  
 licensable. 

• Cross activity exemptions: no licence is required between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, with no limit on  
 audience size for:    

o any entertainment taking place on the premises of the local authority where the entertainment is provided 
 by or on behalf of the local authority;  
o any entertainment taking place on the hospital premises of the health care provider where the  
 entertainment is provided by or on behalf of the health care provider;  
o any entertainment taking place on the premises of the school where the entertainment is provided by or  
 on behalf of the school proprietor; and 
o any entertainment (excluding films and a boxing or wrestling entertainment) taking place at a travelling  
 circus, provided that (a) it takes place within a moveable structure that accommodates the audience, and  
 (b) that the travelling circus has not been located on the same site for more than 28 consecutive days. 

Section 21 of 21

PAYMENT DETAILS

This fee must be paid to the authority. If you complete the application online, you must pay it by debit or credit card.

Premises Licence Fees are determined by the non&nbsp;domestic rateable&nbsp;value of the premises. 
To find out a premises non domestic rateable value go to the Valuation Office Agency site at http://www.voa.gov.uk/
business_rates/index.htm 
Band A - No RV to £4300 £100.00 
Band B - £4301 to £33000 £190.00 
Band C - £33001 to £87000 £315.00 
Band D - £87001 to £125000 £450.00* 
Band E - £125001 and over £635.00* 
*If the premises rateable value is in Bands D or E and the premises is primarily used for the consumption of alcohol on the 
premises then your are required to pay a higher fee 
Band D - £87001 to £125000 £900.00 
Band E - £125001 and over £1,905.00 
There is an exemption from the payment of fees in relation to the provision of regulated entertainment at church halls, 
chapel halls or premises of a similar nature, village halls, parish or community halls, or other premises of a similar nature. The 
costs associated with these licences will be met by central Government. If, however, the licence also authorises the use of 
the premises for the supply of alcohol or the provision of late night refreshment, a fee will be required. 
Schools and sixth form colleges are exempt from the fees associated with the authorisation of regulated entertainment 
where the entertainment is provided by and at the school or college and for the purposes of the school or college. 
If you operate a large event you are subject to ADDITIONAL fees based upon the number in attendance at any one time 
Capacity 5000-9999 £1,000.00 
Capacity 10000 -14999 £2,000.00 
Capacity 15000-19999 £4,000.00 
Capacity 20000-29999 £8,000.00 
Capacity 30000-39999 £16,000.00 
Capacity 40000-49999 £24,000.00 
Capacity 50000-59999 £32,000.00 
Capacity 60000-69999 £40,000.00 
Capacity 70000-79999 £48,000.00 
Capacity 80000-89999 £56,000.00 
Capacity 90000 and over £64,000.00

* Fee amount (£) 190.00

DECLARATION
1

Page 27



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...

* 

[Applicable to individual applicants only, including those in a partnership which is not a limited liability partnership] I 
understand I am not entitled to be issued with a licence if I do not have the entitlement to live and work in the UK (or if I 
am subject to a condition preventing me from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity) and that my 
licence will become invalid if I cease to be entitled to live and work in the UK (please read guidance note 15).

1

* 
The DPS named in this application form is entitled to work in the UK (and is not subject to conditions preventing him or 
her from doing work relating to a licensable activity) and I have seen a copy of his or her proof of entitlement to work, if 
appropriate (please see note 15)

Ticking this box indicates you have read and understood the above declaration

This section should be completed by the applicant, unless you answered "Yes" to the question "Are you an agent acting on 
behalf of the applicant?”

* Full name RAHEEL CHOUDHARY

* Capacity DIRECTOR

* Date 11 / 09 / 2019
 dd               mm             yyyy

Add another signatory

Once you're finished you need to do the following: 
1. Save this form to your computer by clicking file/save as...
2. Go back to  https://www.gov.uk/apply-for-a-licence/premises-licence/islington/apply-1 to upload this file and continue 
with your application.
Don't forget to make sure you have all your supporting documentation to hand.

IT IS AN OFFENCE LIABLE TO SUMMARY CONVICTION TO A FINE OF ANY AMOUNT UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE 
LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION  
  
IT IS AN OFFENCE UNDER SECTION 24B OF THE IMMIGRATION ACT 1971 FOR A PERSON TO WORK WHEN THEY 
KNOW, OR HAVE REASONABLE CAUSE TO BELIEVE, THAT THEY ARE DISQUALIFIED FROM DOING SO BY REASON OF 
THEIR IMMIGRATION STATUS. THOSE WHO EMPLOY AN ADULT WITHOUT LEAVE OR WHO IS SUBJECT TO 
CONDITIONS AS TO EMPLOYMENT WILL BE LIABLE TO A CIVIL PENALTY UNDER SECTION 15 OF THE IMMIGRATION, 
ASYLUM AND NATIONALITY ACT 2006 AND PURSUANT TO SECTION 21 OF THE SAME ACT, WILL BE COMMITTING AN 
OFFENCE WHERE THEY DO SO IN THE KNOWLEDGE, OR WITH REASONABLE CAUSE TO BELIEVE, THAT THE EMPLOYEE 
IS DISQUALIFIED

I I 

I I 

DD 

I I 

Page 28

https://www.gov.uk/apply-for-a-licence/premises-licence/islington/apply-1


© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

OFFICE USE ONLY

Applicant reference number PJARCHWAY

Fee paid

Payment provider reference

ELMS Payment Reference

Payment status

Payment authorisation code

Payment authorisation date

Date and time submitted

Approval deadline

Error message

Is Digitally signed

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 Next >

I I 

I I 

I I 

I I 

I I 

I I 

I I 

I I 

I I 

I I 

□ 

- - - - - - - - ------------

Page 29



GROUND FLOOR PLAN

SP

UP

ELEC

GAS

UP 230

UP 230

UP 160

SP

UP

FLAT ROOF

UP

SP

EXTRACT FLUE UP
THROUGH FLAT ROOF

FIRST FLOOR PLAN

TENANT PATIO AREA ABOVE

SVP

C
a

n
o

p
y h

o
o

d
 o

ve
r 2

0
0

0
x2

4
0
0

m
m

EXTRACT FLUE OUT
THROUGH FLAT ROOF

EXTRACT FLUE RISING
UP ABOVE ROOF

FRESH AIR INTAKE
THROUGH FLAT ROOF

S
H

E
L
V
E
S

FRESH AIR INTAKE
THROUGH FLAT ROOF

D
R
IV

E
R
S

S
T
O

R
E

CONDENSER UNIT

WC

4

SCALE BAR ( METRES )

20 1 3 5

S
T
R
U

C
T
U

R
A
L
 W

A
L
L
 ?

STRUCTURAL WALL ?

CONCRETE SLAB OVER

C
O

N
C
R

E
T
E
 S

L
A
B
 O

V
E
R

EXTRACT
FROM GF WC

WC EXTRACT

EXTRACT FROM

WC UP TO 1st

FLOOR

REVISIONDRAWING NUMBER

SCALE CHECKEDDRAWN BY DATE

CONTRACTORS MUST VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONS ON SITE BEFORE

COMMENCING ANY WORK ON SHOP DRAWINGS

IF THIS DRAWING EXCEEDS THE QUANTITIES IN ANY WAY THE
ARCHITECTS ARE TO BE INFORMED BEFORE THE WORK IS INITIATED

MartinAnthonyDesign Copyright

REV AMENDMENT DATE CHKD

CLIENT

PROJECT

DRAWING TITLE

PapaJohns(GB)Ltd

PROPOSED PLAN

19029-10  (1) A

MAR'19-MAS1:50@A3

790 HOLLOWAY ROAD
ARCHWAY
LONDON
N19 3JH

OPTION 1

A DRAWING REVISED 19.3.19 MAS

,7 
I I 
I' I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

~ 

Middleby 
Marstiall PS740 
gas pizza oven 

--1-1-1-17-7 17-T7 

I I I I I I I I I I 
_ _ L _I _ _l_ _ L _I_ J L _J _ l_ _I 

_J =:I 

-1 

[ 
7_T_l_7 __ 

I I I I 
_J _ _l__l _ _J __ 

~---~-------- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

ff 
f-_13 

> 

l 

------7 
I 

e .. I 
I 

➔ 

' . 
I 

I 

I 

' 

• 

MA DESIGN 
••••••• MART IN ANTHONY DESIGN L IMITED 

P
age 30



 

 

PREMISES LICENCE 

LICENSING ACT 2003 

Premises licence number LN/10866-060813 

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or description 

CHICKEN SHOP 
790 HOLLOWAY ROAD 

Post town London Post code N19 3JH 

Telephone number  

 

Where the licence is time limited the dates 
Not Applicable 

 

Licensable activities authorised by the licence 
Ground Floor Only 

 The provision of late night refreshment 

 

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities 

 The provision of late night refreshment: 

Monday 
Tuesday 
Wednesday 
Thursday 
Friday 
Saturday 
Sunday 

23:00 
23:00 
23:00 
23:00 
23:00 
23:00 
23:00 

to 
to 
to 
to 
to 
to 
to 

02:00 
02:00 
02:00 
02:00 
03:00 
03:00 
02:00 

the following day  
the following day  
the following day  
the following day  
the following day  
the following day  
the following day  

 

The opening hours of the premises: 

Monday 
Tuesday 
Wednesday 
Thursday 
Friday 
Saturday 
Sunday 

10:00 
10:00 
10:00 
10:00 
10:00 
10:00 
10:00 

to 
to 
to 
to 
to 
to 
to 

02:00 
02:00 
02:00 
02:00 
03:00 
03:00 
02:00 

the following day  
the following day  
the following day  
the following day  
the following day  
the following day  
the following day  

 

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/or off 
supplies 
Not Authorised 

 

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and e-mail (where relevant) of holder of 
premises licence 
Mohamed Hanif 

 
 

 
 

 

t 1S LINGTON 

I 

I I I 
I 

Page 31



 

 

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where 
applicable) 
      

 

Name, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor where the 
premises licence authorises the supply of alcohol 
Not Applicable 

 

Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by designated 
premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises the supply of alcohol 
Not Applicable 

 
Islington Council 
Public Protection Division 
222 Upper Street 
London  N1 1XR 
Tel: 020 7527 3031 
Email: licensing@islington.gov.uk 

 

Service Director - Public Protection 

 

Date of Issue 

Page 32



 

 

Annex 1 - Mandatory conditions 

None 

Annex 2 - Conditions consistent with the Operating Schedule 

1. CCTV view and recording system will be installed at the premises, CCTV images to 
be kept and be available to an authorised officer for 31 days. 

2. CCTV signage shall be displayed advising customers their images are being 
recorded. 

3. Till drawers will be securely recessed and fixed to the underside of the sales 
counter to prevent easy access to the cash. 

4. Tills will be skimmed off and excess monies deposited into a secured Time Delay 
safe. 

5. A steel roller shutter to be used at the front of the premises. 

6. Fire exits will be signposted and kept clear of obstructions. 

7. Notices will be prominently displayed on the premises requesting customers to 
respect local residents by leaving the premises quietly. 

8. A rubbish bin will be provided for customers to dispose of their rubbish and regular 
litter patrols will be conducted to keep the premises clean and free from litter. 

9. Suitable commercial receptacles will be used to contain business refuse. 

10. Extract system to be fitted with a silencer and shall be maintained and annually 
serviced. 

11. No deliveries will take place on Sundays or Bank Holidays and between the hours 
of 9pm and 8am other days of the week. 

12. No rubbish including bottles will be moved, removed or placed in outside areas on 
Sundays or Bank Holidays and between the hours of 9pm and 8am other days of 
the week.  

Annex 3 - Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority 

None 

Annex 4 – Plans 

Reference Number: 148298 - 28th Nov 2008 
 

Page 33



 

 

Premises Licence Summary 

Licensing Act 2003 

Premises licence number LN/10866-060813 

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or description 

CHICKEN SHOP 
790 HOLLOWAY ROAD 

Post town London Post code N19 3JH 

Telephone number  

 

Where the licence is time limited the dates 
Not Applicable 

 

Licensable activities authorised by the licence 
Ground Floor Only 

 The provision of late night refreshment 

 

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities 

 The provision of late night refreshment: 

Monday 
Tuesday 
Wednesday 
Thursday 
Friday 
Saturday 
Sunday 

23:00 
23:00 
23:00 
23:00 
23:00 
23:00 
23:00 

to 
to 
to 
to 
to 
to 
to 

02:00 
02:00 
02:00 
02:00 
03:00 
03:00 
02:00 

the following day  
the following day  
the following day  
the following day  
the following day  
the following day  
the following day  

 

The opening hours of the premises: 

Monday 
Tuesday 
Wednesday 
Thursday 
Friday 
Saturday 
Sunday 

10:00 
10:00 
10:00 
10:00 
10:00 
10:00 
10:00 

to 
to 
to 
to 
to 
to 
to 

02:00 
02:00 
02:00 
02:00 
03:00 
03:00 
02:00 

the following day  
the following day  
the following day  
the following day  
the following day  
the following day  
the following day  

 

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/or off 
supplies 
Not Authorised 

 

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and e-mail (where relevant) of holder of 
premises licence 
Mohamed Hanif 

 
 

 
  

 

t 1S LINGTON 

I 

I I I 
I 

Page 34



 

 

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where 
applicable) 
      

 

Name of designated premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises the 
supply of alcohol 
Not Applicable 

 

State whether access to the premises by children is restricted or prohibited 

No restriction 

 

Islington Council 
Public Protection Division 
222 Upper Street 

London  N1 1XR 

Tel: 020 7527 3031 
Email: licensing@islington.gov.uk 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 35



1

O'Donoghue, Natasha

From: Comer Schwartz, Kaya
Sent: 16 September 2019 11:53

Subject: RE: Premises Licence Application: 790 Holloway Road 

Dear John,  

I am objecting to the length of operating hours into late night. It has residents above and around in the surrounding 
streets so noise from deliveries and customers would be disruptive. Does the application for outdoor provision 
mean that they will be serving food in an outdoor area or does it enable them to do off sales and deliveries?  

Best wishes 

Kaya 

From: Williams, John  
Sent: 12 September 2019 16:24 

   

   
Subject: Premises Licence Application: 790 Holloway Road  

Dear Sir/Madam,  

We have received the following attached application for a NEW premises licence application  

Proposed licence holder:HRC Estate ltd, Accounts and Tax Consultants, 54 New Road, Ilford, Essex. IG3 
8AT 

Premises name: 

Address: 790 Holloway Road. N19 3JH 

Application received: 11/09/19 

Last date for representations: 08/10/19 

Regards 

John Williams 

Licensing Team 
Public Protection Division 
Environment & Regeneration 
Islington Council 
3rd Floor, 222 Upper Street, London, N1 1XR 
Tel: 020 7527 3031 
Email: licensing@islington.gov.uk 
Website: www.islington.gov.uk  

Appendix 2
Rep 1

I 

Page 36



1

O'Donoghue, Natasha

From: Burgess, Janet
Sent: 16 September 2019 11:56
To:

Subject: RE: Premises Licence Application: 790 Holloway Road 

I add my support to Councillor Comer Schwartz’. 

I think that they would be open too late at night, which the attendant noise and inconvenience to local residents. 

Councillor Janet Burgess M.B.E. 
Labour Councillor for Junction Ward; Deputy Leader of the Council and Executive Member for Health & Adult Social 
Care 
Islington Council 
Town Hall 
Upper Street 
London N1 2UD 

PA Amanda Russell: 

From: Comer Schwartz, Kaya  
Sent: 16 September 2019 11:53 
To: Licensing     

     
Subject: RE: Premises Licence Application: 790 Holloway Road  

Dear John,  

I am objecting to the length of operating hours into late night. It has residents above and around in the surrounding 
streets so noise from deliveries and customers would be disruptive. Does the application for outdoor provision 
mean that they will be serving food in an outdoor area or does it enable them to do off sales and deliveries?  

Best wishes 

Kaya 

From: Williams, John  
Sent: 12 September 2019 16:24 

   
 

   
Subject: Premises Licence Application: 790 Holloway Road  

Dear Sir/Madam,  

Rep 2

■ 

Page 37



2

We have received the following attached application for a NEW premises licence application  

Proposed licence holder:HRC Estate ltd, Accounts and Tax Consultants, 54 New Road, Ilford, Essex. IG3 
8AT 

Premises name:  

Address: 790 Holloway Road. N19 3JH 

Application received: 11/09/19 

Last date for representations: 08/10/19 

Regards 

John Williams 

Licensing Team 
Public Protection Division 
Environment & Regeneration 
Islington Council 
3rd Floor, 222 Upper Street, London, N1 1XR 
Tel: 020 7527 3031 
Email: licensing@islington.gov.uk 
Website: www.islington.gov.uk  

The information contained in this E-Mail may be subject to public disclosure under the Freedom of 
Information Act 2000. Unless the information is legally exempt from disclosure, the confidentiality of this E-
Mail and your reply cannot be guaranteed.  

The information in this message is confidential and may be legally privileged. It is intended solely for the 
addressee. Access to this message by any other person is not permitted. If you are not the intended 
recipient, any disclosure, copying, distribution or any action taken or omitted to be taken in reliance on it, is 
prohibited and may be unlawful. 

Please help save resources by not printing this e-mail if you can avoid it, and by using recycled paper. 
 

Page 38



 

Appendix 3 

Suggested conditions of approval consistent with the operating schedule 

1. Prominent, clear and legible notices will be displayed advising customers to respect the needs of local 

residents and to leave the premises quietly. 

2. The licensee shall ensure staff are trained with regards to the Premises Licence terms and conditions 

and to operate in a way which will promote the Licensing Objectives. 

Conditions proposed by the Metropolitan Police 

3. CCTV shall be installed, operated, and maintained, to function all times that the premises is 
open for licensable activities. Said CCTV will comply with the following criteria:  

a) The licensee will ensure that the system is checked every two weeks to ensure that the 
system is working properly and that the date and time are correct. 

b) A record of these checks, showing the date and name of the person checking, will be kept 
and made available to the police or other authorised officer on request; 

c) The Police will be informed if the system will not be operating for longer than one day of 
business for any reason; 

d) One camera will show a close-up of the entrance to the premises, to capture a clear, full 
length image of anyone entering; 

e) The system will provide full coverage of the interior of the premises and any exterior part 
of the premises accessible to the public; 

f) The system will record in real time and recordings will be date and time stamped; 

g) The system will be specified so as to operate satisfactorily regardless of lighting conditions; 

h) During opening hours, at least 1 member of staff on duty will be able to operate the system 
sufficiently to allow Police or authorised Council officers to view footage on request; 

i) Recordings will be kept for a minimum of 31 days; 

j) Footage will be provided free of charge to the police or other authorised officers upon request 
(subject to the Data Protection Act 1998) within 24 hours of any request. 

4.  An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available upon request to the police or an 
authorised officer, which will record: 

a) Any and all allegations of crime and/or disorder reported at the venue;  

b) Any and all complaints received by any party; 

c) Any faults in the CCTV system; 

d) Any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service; 

e) Any and all ejections of patrons; 

5.  In the event that crime or serious disorder is, or appears to have been, committed on the premises, the 
management will immediately ensure that: 

a) The police and, where appropriate, the London Ambulance Service, are called immediately; 

b)  As far as is safe and reasonable practicable, all measures will be taken to apprehend 
any identified suspects pending the arrival of the police; 

c) As far as is safe and reasonable practicable, all measures will be taken to preserve any identified 
crime scene pending the arrival of the police. 

6. The premises licence holder shall ensure that all sales staff receive appropriate training in relation to 
managing conflict and health and safety of the public and staff. Training documents shall be signed and 
dated and will be held in a suitable hard copy log to be made available to a Police Officer or a Council 
Officer upon request. Said records shall be retained for at least 12 months.  

Page 39



 

7. The premises licence holder shall ensure that the management and staff prevent the admission of, and 
ensure the prompt departure from the premises of, any and all drunk and or disorderly people or other 
people displaying signs of other substance use, without causing any disorder. 

8. At all times that the premises is open to the public there will be a minimum of 2 members of staff on 
duty. 

 

Page 40



Islington Mapping Page 1 of 1 

~v MAPT .. - . . 

>~ 0 ,. · .. . 

Historical Maps 

http://gisappint/Map That/Default.aspx 12/09/2019 

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
  Environment & Regeneration
  Municipal Office, 222 Upper Street, N1 1XR 
 
Report of: Service Director, Public Protection 
 

Meeting of: Date: Ward(s): 

Licensing Sub-Committee - C 05/11/2019 Clerkenwell 

 

 Exempt Non-exempt 

 
 

SUBJECT: PREMISES LICENCE NEW APPLICATION 
RE: FIREBRAND PIZZA, 84-86 ROSEBERY AVENUE, 

LONDON  EC1R 4QY  

1. Synopsis 

1.1 This is an application for a new premise licence under the Licensing Act 2003. 

1.2 The new application is to allow: 

 The provision of recorded music from 08:00 until 23:00 Sunday to Thursday and 
from 09:00 until 23:30 Friday and Saturday.  

 The provision of Late Night Refreshment from 23:00 until 00:30 Friday and 
Saturday.  

 The on sales of alcohol from 12:00 until 23:00 Sunday to Thursday and from 12:00 
until 23:30 Friday and Saturday.   

Note: These times were put forward by the applicant in an email dated 24 October.   

2. Relevant Representations 

Licensing Authority No 

Metropolitan Police No – Conditions agreed  

Noise No 

Health and Safety No 

ti lSLINGTON 

Page 43

Agenda Item B2



 

Trading Standards No 

Public Health No 

Safeguarding Children No 

London Fire Brigade No 

Local residents Yes: Two residents  

Other bodies No:  

3. Background 

3.1 This property is not currently licensed.  

3.2 The Licensing Authority received seven letters of representation in opposition to this 
application from residents local to the premises.   

3.3 On receipt of the representations, the applicant wrote to the representors advising 
them of the nature of the premises. Subsequently, five of the representors withdrew 
their representation, one confirmed that they were still maintaining their representation 
and the remaining representor had not responded at the time of writing the report. This 
is attached as Appendix 4. The applicant has also invited the representors to meet with 
him.  No meeting had been held at the time of writing this report.  

3.4 The applicant has accepted a number of conditions suggested by the Licensing Police. 
See Appendix 5.  

4. Planning Implications 

    4.1     The property is Locally Listed (not statutorily listed), and is located within the Rosebery  
                   Avenue Conservation Area. 
 

      The property has an approved and established (pizza) restaurant use (A3).  Key  
    conditions relating to approved hours of use are in bold in the planning history  
    below.  It is noted that the proposed licenced hours do not match the conditioned  
    hours of the approved planning permission. 

 

               CONDITION:  The use shall not operate except between the hours of 0800 and 1100  
          on any day. 

 

                              There are no open enforcement cases in relation to the property. 
 

5.       Recommendations 

5.1 To determine the application for a new premises licence under Section 17 of the 
Licensing Act 2003. 

5.2 These premises are located in the Clerkenwell Cumulative Impact Area therefore the 
Licensing Committee will need to consider Licensing Policy 3, which states that there is 
a presumption of refusal unless the Committee is satisfied that there will be no adverse 
cumulative impact on the licensing objectives.   

Page 44



 

5.3 If the Committee grants the application, it should be subject to: 

i. conditions prepared by the Licensing Officer which are consistent with the 
Operating Schedule (see appendix 5); and 

ii. any conditions deemed appropriate by the Committee to promote the four 
licensing objectives (see appendix 5) 

4 Reasons for recommendations 

6.1 The Council is required to consider this application in the light of all relevant 
information, and if approval is given, it may attach such conditions as appropriate to 
promote the licensing objectives. 

Appendices: 

Appendix 1: application form; 

Appendix 2: email amending times from the applicant; 

Appendix 3: representations; 

Appendix 4: response from the applicant to the representors;  

Appendix 5: suggested conditions and map of premises location. 

 

Background papers: 

None. 

Final report clearance: 

Signed by:  

 

 

 
 Service Director – Public Protection Date 

Report author: Licensing Service 

Tel: 020 75027 3031 

E-mail: licensing@islington.gov.uk 

  

24/10/19

Page 45



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Islington
Application for a premises licence
Licensing Act 2003

For help contact

licensing@islington.gov.uk

Telephone: 020 7527 3031 

* required information

Section 1 of 21

You can save the form at any time and resume it later. You do not need to be logged in when you resume.

System reference Not Currently In Use This is the unique reference for this 
application generated by the system.

Your reference Firebrand Pizza You can put what you want here to help you 
track applications if you make lots of them. It 
is passed to the authority.

Are you an agent acting on behalf of the applicant?

Yes No

Put "no" if you are applying on your own 
behalf or on behalf of a business you own or 
work for.

Applicant Details

* First name Bibars

* Family name Ozdamir

* E-mail

Main telephone number Include country code.

Other telephone number

Indicate here if you would prefer not to be contacted by telephone

Are you:

Applying as a business or organisation, including as a sole trader

Applying as an individual

A sole trader is a business owned by one 
person without any special legal structure.  
Applying as an individual means you are 
applying so you can be employed, or for 
some other personal reason, such as 
following a hobby.

Applicant Business
Is your business registered in 
the UK with Companies 
House?

Yes No Note: completing the Applicant Business 
section is optional in this form.

Registration number

Business name Firebrand Pizza LTD
If your business is registered, use its 
registered name.

VAT number - Put "none" if you are not registered for VAT.

Legal status Private Limited Company

1i11SUN GTON 

I 

I 

r r. 

□ 

(e 

r 

I 
I 

------I 

(e r 

--I 
□~I __ 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

Page 46



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...

Your position in the business Director

Home country United Kingdom
The country where the headquarters of your 
business is located.

Registered Address

Building number or name 41- 43

Street Lisson Grove

District

City or town London

County or administrative area London

Postcode NW1 6UB

Country United Kingdom

Address registered with Companies House.

Section 2 of 21

PREMISES DETAILS

I/we, as named in section 1, apply for a premises licence under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the premises 
described in section 2 below (the premises) and I/we are making this application to you as the relevant licensing authority 
in accordance with section 12 of the Licensing Act 2003.

Premises Address

Are you able to provide a postal address, OS map reference or description of the premises?

Address OS map reference Description

Postal Address Of Premises

Building number or name Ground Floor 84-86

Street Rosebury Avenue

District

City or town London

County or administrative area London

Postcode EC1R 4QY

Country United Kingdom

Further Details

Telephone number

Non-domestic rateable 
value of premises (£)

r- r 

--~----
Page 47



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Section 3 of 21

APPLICATION DETAILS

In what capacity are you applying for the premises licence?

An individual or individuals

A limited company / limited liability partnership

A partnership (other than limited liability)

An unincorporated association

Other (for example a statutory corporation)

A recognised club

A charity

The proprietor of an educational establishment

A health service body

A person who is registered under part 2 of the Care Standards Act 

2000 (c14) in respect of an independent hospital in Wales

A person who is registered under Chapter 2 of Part 1 of the Health and 
Social Care Act 2008 in respect of the carrying on of a regulated 
activity (within the meaning of that Part) in an independent hospital in 
England

The chief officer of police of a police force in England and Wales

Confirm The Following

I am carrying on or proposing to carry on a business which involves 
the use of the premises for licensable activities

I am making the application pursuant to a statutory function

I am making the application pursuant to a function discharged by 
virtue of Her Majesty's prerogative

Section 4 of 21

NON INDIVIDUAL APPLICANTS

Provide name and registered address of applicant in full. Where appropriate give any registered number. In the case of a 
partnership or other joint venture (other than a body corporate), give the name and address of each party concerned.

Non Individual Applicant's Name

Name Firebrand Pizza LTD

Details

Registered number (where 
applicable)

Description of applicant (for example partnership, company, unincorporated association etc)

□ 
[g] 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

[g] 

□ 

□ 

I I 

- I 

Page 48



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...

Limited Liability Company

Address

Building number or name

Street

District

City or town

County or administrative area

Postcode

Country

Contact Details

E-mail

Telephone number

Other telephone number

* Date of birth / /
 dd               mm             yyyy

* Nationality
Documents that demonstrate entitlement to 
work in the UK

Add another applicant

Section 5 of 21

OPERATING SCHEDULE

When do you want the 
premises licence to start? 10 / 11 / 2019

 dd               mm             yyyy

If you wish the licence to be 
valid only for a limited period, 
when do you want it to end

/ /
 dd               mm             yyyy

Provide a general description of the premises

For example the type of premises, its general situation and layout and any other information which could be relevant to the 
licensing objectives. Where your application includes off-supplies of alcohol and you intend to provide a place for 
consumption of these off- supplies you must include a description of where the place will be and its proximity to the 
premises.

Ground floor Italian pizzeria/restaurant arranged as a dining area on ground floor arranged as two areas with two entry 
doors. Kitchen and toilets located in the basement. Same layout and arrangement to the restaurant that was in the premises 
with the same licensable activities for the last 10 years "La Porchetta" . 
The restaurant will offer sale by retail of alcohol with late night refreshments. 
Firebrand pizza is Italian wood fired sourdough pizza and other dishes with delivery and takeaway options.

- I -- I 
I I 

- I 
I I 

-- I --- I 

- I -- I 

I I 

[j] [iJ l•I 

- I 
II I 

D □ I I 

D □ I I 

Page 49



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...

If 5,000 or more people are 
expected to attend the 
premises at any one time, 
state the number expected to 
attend

Section 6 of 21

PROVISION OF PLAYS

See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will you be providing plays?

Yes No

Section 7 of 21

PROVISION OF FILMS

See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will you be providing films?

Yes No

Section 8 of 21

PROVISION OF INDOOR SPORTING EVENTS

See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will you be providing indoor sporting events?

Yes No

Section 9 of 21

PROVISION OF BOXING OR WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENTS

See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will you be providing boxing or wrestling entertainments?

Yes No

Section 10 of 21

PROVISION OF LIVE MUSIC

See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will you be providing live music?

Yes No

Section 11 of 21

PROVISION OF RECORDED MUSIC

See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will you be providing recorded music?

Yes No

Standard Days And Timings

I I 

r (e 

r (e 

r (e 

r (e 

r (e 

(e r 

Page 50



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...

MONDAY

Start 08:00 End 24:00

Start End

Give timings in 24 hour clock. 
(e.g., 16:00) and only give details for the days 
of the week when you intend the premises 
to be used for the activity.

TUESDAY

Start 08:00 End 24:00

Start End

WEDNESDAY

Start 08:00 End 24:00

Start End

THURSDAY

Start 08:00 End 24:00

Start End

FRIDAY

Start 08:00 End 24:00

Start End

SATURDAY

Start 09:00 End 24:00

Start End

SUNDAY

Start 09:00 End 24:00

Start End

Will the playing of recorded music take place indoors or outdoors or both?

Indoors Outdoors Both

Where taking place in a building or other 
structure tick as appropriate. Indoors may 
include a tent.

State type of activity to be authorised, if not already stated, and give relevant further details, for example (but not 
exclusively) whether or not music will be amplified or unamplified.

Ambient music only and not amplified 

State any seasonal variations for playing recorded music

For example (but not exclusively) where the activity will occur on additional days during the summer months.

I I I I 

I I I I 

I I I I 

I I I I 

I I I I 

I I I I 

I I I I 

I I I I 

I I I I 

I I I I 

I I I I 

I I I I 

I I I I 

I I I I 

(e (' (' 

Page 51



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...

Non-standard timings. Where the premises will be used for the playing of recorded music at different times from those listed 
in the column on the left, list below

For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day e.g. Christmas Eve.

New years eve to 01:00 am

Section 12 of 21

PROVISION OF PERFORMANCES OF DANCE

See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will you be providing performances of dance?

Yes No

Section 13 of 21

PROVISION OF ANYTHING OF A SIMILAR DESCRIPTION TO LIVE MUSIC, RECORDED MUSIC OR PERFORMANCES OF 
DANCE

See guidance on regulated entertainment
Will you be providing anything similar to live music, recorded music or 
performances of dance?

Yes No

Section 14 of 21

LATE NIGHT REFRESHMENT

Will you be providing late night refreshment?

Yes No

Standard Days And Timings

MONDAY

Start 23:00 End 24:00

Start End

Give timings in 24 hour clock. 
(e.g., 16:00) and only give details for the days 
of the week when you intend the premises 
to be used for the activity.

TUESDAY

Start 23:00 End 24:00

Start End

WEDNESDAY

Start 23:00 End 24:00

Start End

THURSDAY

Start 23:00 End 24:00

Start End

I 

r r-

r r-

r- r 

I I I I 

I I I I 

I I I I 

I I I I 

I I I I 

I I I I 

I I I I 

I I I I 
Page 52



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...

FRIDAY

Start 23:00 End 24:00

Start End

SATURDAY

Start 23:00 End 24:00

Start End

SUNDAY

Start 23:00 End 24:00

Start End

Will the provision of late night refreshment take place indoors or outdoors or 
both?

Indoors Outdoors Both Where taking place in a building or other 
structure tick as appropriate. Indoors may 
include a tent.

State type of activity to be authorised, if not already stated, and give relevant further details, for example (but not 
exclusively) whether or not music will be amplified or unamplified.

Ambient music will not be amplified. Late night refreshment will happen indoor.

State any seasonal variations

For example (but not exclusively) where the activity will occur on additional days during the summer months.

Non-standard timings. Where the premises will be used for the supply of late night refreshments at different times from 
those listed in the column on the left, list below

For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day e.g. Christmas Eve.

One hour longer on New Years Eve

Section 15 of 21

SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL

Will you be selling or supplying alcohol?

Yes No

I I I I 

I I I I 

I I I I 

I I I I 

I I I I 

I I I I 

(e r r 

(e r Page 53



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...

Standard Days And Timings

MONDAY

Start 12:00 End 24:00

Start End

Give timings in 24 hour clock. 
(e.g., 16:00) and only give details for the days 
of the week when you intend the premises 
to be used for the activity.

TUESDAY

Start 12:00 End 24:00

Start End

WEDNESDAY

Start 12:00 End 24:00

Start End

THURSDAY

Start 12:00 End 24:00

Start End

FRIDAY

Start 12:00 End 24:00

Start End

SATURDAY

Start 12:00 End 24:00

Start End

SUNDAY

Start 12:00 End 24:00

Start End

Will the sale of alcohol be for consumption:

On the premises Off the premises Both

If the sale of alcohol is for consumption on 
the premises select on, if the sale of alcohol 
is for consumption away from the premises 
select off. If the sale of alcohol is for 
consumption on the premises and away 
from the premises select both.

State any seasonal variations

For example (but not exclusively) where the activity will occur on additional days during the summer months.

r- r 0 

Page 54



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...

Non-standard timings. Where the premises will be used for the supply of alcohol at different times from those listed in the 
column on the left, list below

For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day e.g. Christmas Eve.

One hour later on New Years Eve

State the name and details of the individual whom you wish to specify on the 
licence as premises supervisor

Name

First name Bibars

Family name Ozdamir

Date of birth / /
 dd               mm             yyyy

Enter the contact's address

Building number or name

Street

District

City or town

County or administrative area

Postcode

Country

Personal Licence number 
(if known)

Issuing licensing authority 
(if known)

PROPOSED DESIGNATED PREMISES SUPERVISOR CONSENT

How will the consent form of the proposed designated premises  supervisor 
be supplied to the authority? 

Electronically, by the proposed designated premises supervisor

As an attachment to this application

Reference number for consent 
form (if known)

If the consent form is already submitted, ask 
the proposed designated premises 
supervisor for its 'system reference' or 'your 
reference'.

I I 

I I 

[iJ [iJ l•I 

i I - I 
I I 

- I - I -- I --- I 

-- I 

- I 

r 
r-

I I 

Page 55



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...

Section 16 of 21

ADULT ENTERTAINMENT

Highlight any adult entertainment or services, activities, or other entertainment or matters ancillary to the use of the 
premises that may give rise to concern in respect of children

Give information about anything intended to occur at the premises or ancillary to the use of the premises which may give 
rise to concern in respect of children, regardless of whether you intend children to have access to the premises, for example 
(but not exclusively) nudity or semi-nudity, films for restricted age groups etc gambling machines etc.

Section 17 of 21

HOURS PREMISES ARE OPEN TO THE PUBLIC

Standard Days And Timings

MONDAY

Start 08:00 End 24:00

Start End

Give timings in 24 hour clock. 
(e.g., 16:00) and only give details for the days 
of the week when you intend the premises 
to be used for the activity.

TUESDAY

Start 08:00 End 24:00

Start End

WEDNESDAY

Start 08:00 End 24:00

Start End

THURSDAY

Start 08:00 End 24:00

Start End

FRIDAY

Start 08:00 End 24:00

Start End

SATURDAY

Start 09:00 End 24:00

Start End

SUNDAY

Start 09:00 End 24:00

Start End

State any seasonal variations

I I I I 

I I I I 

I I I I 

I I I I 

I I I I 

I I I I 

I I I I 

I I I I 

I I I I 

I I I I 

I I I I 

I I I I 

I I I I 

I I I I Page 56



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...

For example (but not exclusively) where the activity will occur on additional days during the summer months.

Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises to be open to the members and guests at different times from 
those listed in the column on the left, list below

For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day e.g. Christmas Eve.

one hour more on New Years Eve

Section 18 of 21

LICENSING OBJECTIVES

Describe the steps you intend to take to promote the four licensing objectives:

a) General – all four licensing objectives (b,c,d,e)

List here steps you will take to promote all four licensing objectives together.

The restaurant will be constantly staffed with manger/supervisor and professional waiters/waitresses during operation 
hours, and they will be well trained  to deal with complaints or any disorder that might happen in the restaurant. The 
restaurant will install and maintain a comprehensive  24 hours CCTV system in the (Entrances/ Exits) enabling frontal 
identification of every person entering the premises during and outside operation hours. We will keep records for 31 days 
with date and time stamping, recording will be available anytime to an authorised person. There will be a staff member all 
the time who is conversant with the operation of the CCTV system to be able to show the authorised officer the data 
footage with the absolute minimum of delay. 
The restaurant will install and maintain a comprehensive fire detection/ alarm system with a maintenance contract with 
registered firm. 
The premises will only operate as a cafe/restaurant. 
- The food will be prepared on the premises to be consumed as a meal on the table using non disposable crockery, taken 
away or delivered. 
- Intoxicating Liquors shall be sold to restaurant customers only seated at their tables on at the bar. 
- The supply of alcohol shall be by waiter or waitress service only. 
-A log will be kept detailing all refused sales of alcohol, and the log will include date and time of the refused sale and the 
name of staff member who refused the sale, and will be available for inspection at the premises by the police or authorised 
officer of the City Council at all times whilst the premises is open. 
- all waste will be properly presented and placed out no more than 30 minutes earlier to scheduled collection times. 
- No deliveries to the premises shall be arranged between (20:00) and (08:00)

b) The prevention of crime and disorder

The manager/ supervisor as well as the waiters/ waitresses will be trained as mentioned above to deal with complaints and 
any possible disorder, report and suspicious activities, and refuse sale of alcohol under the circumstances when they should 
do so. 
The restaurant will install and maintain a comprehensive  24 hours CCTV system in the (Entrance/ Exit) enabling frontal 
identification of every person entering the premises during and outside operating hours, and that will keep records for 31 
days with date and time stamping, recording will be available anytime to an authorised person. There will be a staff 
member all the time who is conversant with the operation of the CCTV system to be able to show the authorised officer the 
data footage with the absolute minimum of delay. 

Page 57



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...
  

c) Public safety

All mentioned in the General-all four licensing objectives above.

d) The prevention of public nuisance

- All waste will be properly presented and placed out no more than 30 minutes earlier to scheduled collection times. 
- No deliveries to the premises shall be arranged between (20:00) and (08:00) 
- All customers will be asked to leave the premises quietly 
- Only ambient music will be played

e) The protection of children from harm

All the staff will be aware than no children under the age of 18 will be sold alcohol. We will be implementing challenge 25 
when anyone looks under 25 is ordering alcohol he/she will be asked to present a proof of age.

Section 19 of 21

NOTES ON DEMONSTRATING ENTITLEMENT TO WORK IN THE UK

I 

Page 58



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...

* 

[Applicable to individual applicants only, including those in a partnership which is not a limited liability partnership] I 
understand I am not entitled to be issued with a licence if I do not have the entitlement to live and work in the UK (or if I 
am subject to a condition preventing me from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity) and that my 
licence will become invalid if I cease to be entitled to live and work in the UK (please read guidance note 15).

1

* 
The DPS named in this application form is entitled to work in the UK (and is not subject to conditions preventing him or 
her from doing work relating to a licensable activity) and I have seen a copy of his or her proof of entitlement to work, if 
appropriate (please see note 15)

Ticking this box indicates you have read and understood the above declaration

This section should be completed by the applicant, unless you answered "Yes" to the question "Are you an agent acting on 
behalf of the applicant?”

* Full name Bibars Ozdamir

* Capacity Director

* Date 11 / 09 / 2019
 dd               mm             yyyy

Add another signatory

Once you're finished you need to do the following: 
1. Save this form to your computer by clicking file/save as...
2. Go back to  https://www.gov.uk/apply-for-a-licence/premises-licence/islington/apply-1 to upload this file and continue 
with your application.
Don't forget to make sure you have all your supporting documentation to hand.

IT IS AN OFFENCE LIABLE TO SUMMARY CONVICTION TO A FINE OF ANY AMOUNT UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE 
LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION  
  
IT IS AN OFFENCE UNDER SECTION 24B OF THE IMMIGRATION ACT 1971 FOR A PERSON TO WORK WHEN THEY 
KNOW, OR HAVE REASONABLE CAUSE TO BELIEVE, THAT THEY ARE DISQUALIFIED FROM DOING SO BY REASON OF 
THEIR IMMIGRATION STATUS. THOSE WHO EMPLOY AN ADULT WITHOUT LEAVE OR WHO IS SUBJECT TO 
CONDITIONS AS TO EMPLOYMENT WILL BE LIABLE TO A CIVIL PENALTY UNDER SECTION 15 OF THE IMMIGRATION, 
ASYLUM AND NATIONALITY ACT 2006 AND PURSUANT TO SECTION 21 OF THE SAME ACT, WILL BE COMMITTING AN 
OFFENCE WHERE THEY DO SO IN THE KNOWLEDGE, OR WITH REASONABLE CAUSE TO BELIEVE, THAT THE EMPLOYEE 
IS DISQUALIFIED

I I 

I I 

DD 

I I 

Page 59

https://www.gov.uk/apply-for-a-licence/premises-licence/islington/apply-1


1

Jones, Carol

From:
Sent: 24 October 2019 14:33
To: Jones, Carol
Subject: Firebrand Pizza, 84-86 Rosebery Avenue
Attachments: IMG_7166.jpg

Hi Carol,  
 
Thanks for your email.  
 
To answer the points in your email: 

1. Smoking – we will not allow customers to smoke on our demise 
2. Diggs – the website is simply a holding page while we get the full one designed. Nevertheless we did change 

it on the 12th October – please ask the resident to refresh the browser.  
3. Hours – the previous occupant’s license was for recorded music up to 24:00 every day and late night 

refreshment (food and drink) till 23:30 everyday. However in light of the comments from residents we 
would like to amend our application so the hours are 23.00 Sunday to Thursday and 23.30 Friday and 
Saturday. 

Best regards,  
 

 
 

From: Jones, Carol <Carol.Jones@islington.gov.uk>  
Sent: 23 October 2019 11:39 
To:
Subject: Firebrand Pizza, 84‐86 Rosebery Avenue 
 
Dear Mr Ozdamir,  
 
I refer to your application for a new premises licence made in respect of the above premises.  
 
Further to your email to the residents and subsequent email inviting residents to a meeting at the premises, I 
confirm the following; 
 
Rep 1 = Withdrawn if you can please confirm that smokers will not be allowed to congregate outside the premises.  
 
Rep 2 = Withdrawn 

  

Guy Holmes 
  

 
    

 

 

 
  

 

Note: This email is confidential and intended solely for the use of the individual to who it is addressed. If you are 
not the intended recipient be advised that you have received this email in error and that any use, dissemination, 
forwarding, printing or copying of this email is strictly prohibited. All emails sent on this account are scanned but 
we will not accept any liability for the transfer of any virus onto any other machine. Thank you. 

  

 

Firebrand f -

Page 60



2

 
Rep 3 = No response, Rep remains.  
 
Rep 4 = Withdrawn 
 
Rep 5 = Withdrawn 
 
Rep 6 = Withdrawn if you can please confirm that smokers will not be allowed to congregate outside the premises.  
 
Rep 7 = Not withdrawing, comments below;  
 
1. The applicant continues to promote ‘Diggs’ Cafe & bar on their website.  
 
2. I have not been provided with any evidence that the applicant has changed the closing hour to 23.00 on all days on 
their application.  
 
Therefore the application will still be referred to a meeting of the Licensing Sub Committee for determination on 5 
November.  
 
If there is anything else you would like me to forward to the residents, I would be happy to do so.  
 
I will be writing the report for this application today and will advise you once it appears on Islington’s website.  
 
With regards,  
 
Carol  
 
Carol Jones 
Licensing Officer 
 
Licensing Team 
Environment and Regeneration 
Islington Council 
Third Floor, 222 Upper Street, London  N1 1XR 
Telephone: 020 7527 3014 or 020 7527 3031 
Web: www.islington.gov.uk 
 

 
 
This e‐mail is intended for the addressee only. If you have received it in error, please contact the sender and delete 
the material from your computer. Please be aware that information in this email may be confidential, legally 
privileged and/or copyright protected.  

• Towards a Fairer Islington 
I 

ffl l 

Page 61



1

Jones, Carol

From:
Sent: 04 October 2019 16:27
To: Licensing; 
Subject: Licensing application WK/190028335

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

Dear Sirs, 
 
Re: Licensing application (ref: WK/190028335): Firebrand Pizza, Basement and Ground floor, 84‐86 Rosebery 
Avenue, Islington, London EC1R 4QY 
 
I am a local resident concerned about the impact of the above licensing application. I would like to register my 
objection to the proposed application. My objection is based on the impact of the application to the Clerkenwell 
Cumulative Area. Specifically to:  

 The prevention of crime and disorder 
 The prevention of public nuisance and  
 Ensuring public safety. 

Crime, disorder  
 
The extended licence hours that the applicant is requesting will only worsen the level of crime, disorder, public 
nuisance in this area. Most premises in the Clerkenwell Cumulative Impact Area have a licence until 23.00, which is 
reasonable. The applicant has asked for a licence until 00.00 for every night, which is out of character for the area. A 
licence until 00.00 will attract people who are persuaded by such establishments to continue drinking alcohol after 
23.00, thereby increasing and concentrating the negative impact on crime, disorder, public nuisance and risk to 
public safety around 84‐86 Rosebery Avenue.  
 
The Islington Council ’Statement of Licensing Policy 2018‐2022’ (Point 22, page 12) evidences that the applicant’s 
request for a late‐night licence will only add to an unacceptable level of public nuisance caused by bars and 
restaurants in the Clerkenwell Cumulative Impact Area: 
 
• Clerkenwell has the highest number of complaints about drinking in the street than any other ward in the borough 
 
• Residents continue to experience adverse impacts of the late night licenced venues. 
 
Much of this activity centres on Exmouth market and Rosebery Avenue. There are over 20 bars and restaurants in 
this area that contribute to the issue that Islington Council acknowledges in the policy document above. As a local 
resident I am regularly woken up by drunk people coming out of the many bars that already operate in this area. 
There is shouting, fighting, urination, vomiting and property damage on an regular basis around 84‐86 Rosebery 
Avenue. Another late‐night bar, as proposed by the applicant will only serve to worsen such disorder. 
 
The applicant’s own web site promotes their separate bar to be opened on this site called ‘Diggs', one that will be 
open “Morning‐Noon‐Night”. This site has always been a restaurant which has closed at 23.00, consistent with the 
business practices of the Clerkenwell Impact Area around Exmouth Market. But the applicant wants to change the 
nature of the business from a sole restaurant to an additional bar, one that they are actively promoting for late‐
night drinking. It appears that this licence application is intended to serve more than just a local pizza restaurant, it 
is actually covering the intention of opening a late‐night bar ‐ one that will breach the objectives of Islington 
Council’s licensing policy for the Clerkenwell Cumulative Impact Area. 

-

Page 62



2

Public Nuisance 
 
A late‐night licence will also increase the public nuisance of the restaurant’s kitchen extractor fans and music that 
invade my flat via the lightwell at the centre of  Rosebery Avenue. A licence until 00.00 will increase the 
negative impact on environment and health for all residents of   Rosebery Avenue. In addition, public nuisance 
will be caused by the applicant placing debris in their proposed commercial bins. The noise of bottles being thrown 
into bins by restaurant staff past midnight, every night will certainly be a public nuisance. 
 
In addition the entrance to the proposed bar area will exit onto a narrow pavement close to the east bound bus stop 
where late night drinkers are likely to congregate whilst waiting for the bus. It is almost certain that they will not 
wait quietly but further add to public nuisance and safety concerns. 
 
Public safety 
 
The proposed entrances of the two business (Firebrand Pizza and Diggs) will be on Rosebery Avenue. This will cause 
a public safety issue, as patrons of the two proposed establishments will exit straight onto a narrow pavement onto 
a busy main road. As a resident, I am already woken up frequently by the sound of screaming people, screeching car 
brakes and car horns as intoxicated people attempt to cross Rosebery Avenue at this point, after leaving The Old 
China Hand (opposite the applicant’s premises on Rosebery Avenue). The applicant’s intention to run a late‐night 
bar will only add to the public safety risk at an already dangerous location. 
 
Yours faithfully 
 

 
  

 

 
 

1111 1111 

Page 63



1

Jones, Carol

From:
Sent: 04 October 2019 15:19
To: Licensing
Subject: Licensing application (ref: WK/190028335): Firebrand Pizza, Basement and Ground 

floor, 84-86 Rosebery Avenue, Islington, London EC1R 4QY

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

Dear Sirs, 
 
Re: Licensing application (ref: WK/190028335): Firebrand Pizza, Basement and Ground floor, 84-86 
Rosebery Avenue, Islington, London EC1R 4QY 
 
I am writing to register my objection to the application for a premises licence by Firebrand Pizza, 84-86 
Rosebery Avenue, London EC1R 4QY. The basis for my opposition is that granting a licence for these 
premises will undermine Islington Council's objectives (pertaining to the Licensing Act 2003) for any new 
licence in the Clerkenwell Cumulative Impact Area, relating to: 

 The prevention of crime and disorder 
 The prevention of public nuisance and  
 Ensuring public safety. 

Crime, disorder and public nuisance 
 
The extended licence hours that the applicant is requesting will only worsen the level of crime, disorder, 
public nuisance in this area. Most premises in the Clerkenwell Cumulative Impact Area have a licence until 
23.00, which is reasonable. The applicant has asked for a licence until 00.00 for every night, which is out of 
character for the area. A licence until 00.00 will attract people who are persuaded by such establishments to 
continue drinking alcohol after 23.00, thereby increasing and concentrating the negative impact on crime, 
disorder, public nuisance and risk to public safety around 84-86 Rosebery Avenue.  
 
The Islington Council ’Statement of Licensing Policy 2018-2022’ (Point 22, page 12) evidences that the 
applicant’s request for a late-night licence will only add to an unacceptable level of public nuisance caused 
by bars and restaurants in the Clerkenwell Cumulative Impact Area: 
 
• Clerkenwell has the highest number of complaints about drinking in the street than any other ward in the 
borough 
 
• Residents continue to experience adverse impacts of the late night licenced venues. 
 
Much of this activity centres on Exmouth market and Rosebery Avenue. There are over 20 bars and 
restaurants in this area that contribute to the issue that Islington Council acknowledges in the policy 
document above. Living in a flat at Rosebery Avenue, I am regularly woken up by drunk people 
coming out of the many bars that already operate in this area. There is shouting, fighting, urination, 
vomiting and property damage on an regular basis around Rosebery Avenue. Another late-night bar, 
as proposed by the applicant will only serve to worsen such disorder. 
 
The applicant’s own web site promotes their separate bar to be opened on this site called ‘Diggs', one that 
will be open “Morning-Noon-Night”. This site has always been a restaurant which has closed at 23.00, 
consistent with the business practices of the Clerkenwell Impact Area around Exmouth Market. But the 

- -
Page 64



2

applicant wants to change the nature of the business from a sole restaurant to an additional bar, one that they 
are actively promoting for late-night drinking. It appears that this licence application is intended to serve 
more than just a local pizza restaurant, it is actually covering the intention of opening a late-night bar - one 
that will breach the objectives of Islington Council’s licensing policy for the Clerkenwell Cumulative 
Impact Area. 

A late-night licence will also increase the public nuisance of the restaurant’s kitchen extractor fans and 
music that invade my flat via the lightwell at the centre of Rosebery Avenue. A licence until 00.00 
will increase the negative impact on environment and health for all residents of  Rosebery Avenue. In 
addition, public nuisance will be caused by the applicant placing debris in their proposed commercial bins. 
The noise of bottles being thrown into bins by restaurant staff past midnight, every night will certainly be a 
public nuisance. 
 
Public safety 
 
The proposed entrances of the two business (Firebrand Pizza and Diggs) will be on Rosebery Avenue. This 
will cause a public safety issue, as patrons of the two proposed establishments will exit straight onto a 
narrow pavement onto a busy main road. As a resident, I am already woken up frequently by the sound of 
screaming people, screeching car brakes and car horns as intoxicated people attempt to cross Rosebery 
Avenue at this point, after leaving The Old China Hand (opposite the applicant’s premises on Rosebery 
Avenue). The applicant’s intention to run a late-night bar will only add to the public safety risk at an already 
dangerous location. 
 
Yours faithfully 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

- -

Page 65



	

	

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dear Local Residents,  
 
We have been forwarded the objections to our license from the local residents 
which we have read thoroughly and took every point raised seriously, as you 
can see from our detailed response below. I would also like to point out that 
we are a premium casual restaurant which will rely on the relationships we 
build within the local community. We consider ourselves part of the 
community in Marylebone building excellent relationships with local residents 
and businesses. 
 

1) Diggs. Initially when taking the site we did plan to open a coffee shop 
and deli that was open in the evening for alcoholic drinks. However, 
after meeting Tim Livermore from Islington Police on 18/09/19 we 
agreed to drop this element and our license application makes no 
mention of a bar. We agree that any alcohol will only be served 
accompanied with food with no vertical drinking as per the police 
conditions. Residents have referenced the marketing material – but this 
wasn’t updated to reflect the evolved business model. Apologies for the 
confusion.  

2) Opening Hours: We reconsidered our opening hours as we don’t won’t 
to cause any nuisance to the local residents and we will be sticking to 
23:00 weekdays (less than the previous tenant’s license) and 23:30 Fri 
& Sat as per the previous license.  

3) Extraction: The extraction will be switched off at 23:00 as requested. 
Please note that the previous operator has not been servicing the 
extraction regularly as we found out when we serviced it which resulted 
in higher noise. Previously there was little insulation between the 
restaurant and the lightwell as an old window was boarded up. We 
have since blocked it off and insulated it, which will significantly reduce 
any noise which they may have experienced from the previous tenant.  

4) Well run business. One resident mentioned they welcome a well-run 
business – this is us! Our existing restaurant in Marylebone has been 
open for over 3 years and in that time we have received no complaints 
from local residents. The restaurant is very well run – we have a 5 star 
food hygiene rating and ratings of 4.5 in Google and the vast majority 
of reviews on Tripadvisor are excellent.  

5) We welcome regular conversations with the local residents about how 
reduce our impact.  

 
 

Firebrand 
- PIZZA -

Firebrand Pizza Limited - Company number 10348304 

84-86 Rosebery Avenue, 
London, EC1R 4QY 

E: 
W: www.firebrandpizza.co.uk 

f firebrandpizza 'tJ# firebrand_pizza aJ firebrand_pizza 
Page 66



	

	

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6) Local community. We believe in being a real asset and part of the local 
community. I would like to refer local residents to the community page 
on our website – we regularly support local charities and schools.  

 
I believe all of the points above will mean the removal of most of the 
objections and welcome feedback and further dialog as necessary.  
 
 
Many thanks,  
 
 
 
 
Guy Holmes 
 

Firebrand 
- PIZZA -

Firebrand Pizza Limited - Company number 10348304 

84-86 Rosebery Avenue, 
London, EC1R 4QY 

E: 
W: www.firebrandpizza.co.uk 

f firebrandpizza 'tJ# firebrand_pizza aJ firebrand_pizza 
Page 67



 

Appendix 5 

Suggested conditions of approval consistent with the operating schedule 

1. The premises will only operate as a cafe/restaurant. 
 
2.  Intoxicating Liquors shall be sold to restaurant customers only seated at their tables on at the 

bar. 

3.  The supply of alcohol shall be by waiter or waitress service only. 
 
4.  The restaurant will install and maintain a comprehensive fire detection/ alarm system with a 

maintenance contract with registered firm. 
 
5.  All waste will be properly presented and placed out no more than 30 minutes earlier to 

scheduled collection times. 
 
6.  No deliveries to the premises shall be arranged between (20:00) and (08:00) 

7.  The manager/ supervisor as well as the waiters/ waitresses will be trained as mentioned above 
to deal with complaints and any possible disorder, report and suspicious activities, and refuse 
sale of alcohol under the circumstances when they should do so. 

 
8. All customers will be asked to leave the premises quietly 
 
9. Only ambient music will be played at the premises.  
.  

Suggested conditions from the Metropolitan Police Service - Agreed 
10.    CCTV shall be installed, operated, and maintained, to function all times that the premises is open for 

licensable activities. Said CCTV will comply with the following criteria:  
 

(a) The licensee will ensure that the system is checked every two weeks to ensure that the system is 
working properly and that the date and time are correct.  

(b) A record of these checks, showing the date and name of the person checking, will be kept and made 
available to the police or other authorised officer on request;  

(c) The Police will be informed if the system will not be operating for longer than one day of business for 
any reason;  

(d) One camera will show a close-up of the entrance to the premises, to capture a clear, full length 
image of anyone entering;  

(e) The system will provide full coverage of the interior of the premises and any exterior part of the 
premises accessible to the public;  

(f) The system will record in real time and recordings will be date and time stamped;  

(g) The system will be specified so as to operate satisfactorily regardless of lighting conditions;  

(h) During opening hours, at least 1 member of staff on duty will be able to operate the system 
sufficiently to allow Police or authorised Council officers to view footage on request;  

(i) Recordings will be kept for a minimum of 31 days;  

(j) Footage will be provided free of charge to the police or other authorised officers upon request 
(subject to the Data Protection Act 1998) within 24 hours of any request.  

 

Page 68



 

11.    An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available upon request to the police or an 
authorised officer, which will record:  

 
(a) Any and all allegations of crime and/or disorder reported at the venue;  

(b) Any and all complaints received by any party;  

(c) Any faults in the CCTV system;  

(d) Any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service;  

(e) Any and all ejections of patrons;  

(f) Any and all seizures of drugs or offensive weapons;  

(g) Any refusal of the sale of alcohol.  
 
12.    In the event that crime or serious disorder is, or appears to have been, committed on the premises, the 

management will immediately ensure that:  
 

(a) The police and, where appropriate, the London Ambulance Service, are called immediately;  

(b) As far as is safe and reasonable practicable, all measures will be taken to apprehend any identified 
suspects pending the arrival of the police;  

(c) As far as is safe and reasonable practicable, all measures will be taken to preserve any identified 
crime scene pending the arrival of the police.  
 

13.   The premises licence holder shall ensure that all sales staff receive appropriate training in relation to 
managing conflict and health and safety of the public and staff. Training documents shall be signed and 
dated and will be held in a suitable hard-copy log, to be made available to a Police Officer or Council 
Officer upon request. Said records shall be retained for at least 12 months.  

 
14.    The licensee shall ensure that the management and staff prevent the admission of, and ensure the 

prompt departure from the premises of, any and all drunk and or disorderly people or other people 
displaying signs of other substance use, without causing any disorder.  

 
15.    A full restaurant menu of hot food (in the form of substantial meals that are freshly prepared on the 

premises), and soft/non-intoxicating drinks will be offered at all times when the premises is open for 
licensable activities.  

 
16.   The premises will operate the ‘Challenge 25’ proof of age scheme.  
 

(a) All staff will be fully trained in its operation;  

(b) Only suitable forms of photographic identification, such as passport or UK driving licence, or 
holograph equipped ‘PASS’ scheme cards, will be accepted.  

 
17.    The premises will display and maintain appropriate signage advising customers of the contact details of   

the Designated Premises Supervisor.  
 
18.    There shall be no vertical drinking permitted anywhere on the premises at any time.  

 

Page 69



( ...... . 

__ ,.· 
.-... __ ... 

,• .-· 

) 

. . 
: 

. .... - -· -

-· 

D 

Ollceo 

~ 

... ~··._··~ . 
... -· ·-~ · .. . . . . -· . :,. _______ _ 

. . 

--

V 

.. 

.•· . 
·... . 

. ·--; ....... 
___ ._.,:· , . .,.: .. ·:·;.,...--~ < 

Play-

P
age 70


	Agenda
	A6 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	B1 Papa Johns, 790 Holloway Road, N19 3JH - New premises licence
	Draft Report..docx
	islington-863759-Archway 10 Proposed Plan (RevA)
	Report-App.pdf
	Redacted Application-Holloway Road790
	islington-863759-Archway 10 Proposed Plan (RevA)
	New-11Sep19-ResLetMap


	B2 Firebrand Pizza, 84-86 Rosebery Avenue, EC1R 4QY - New premises licence
	LSC Report - Firebrand Pizza
	islington-863463-Islington_Application_for_a_premises_licence
	Rep Ben Clifford
	Rep Tim Kyndt
	Objections Response
	AMending  Times
	Map




